# warringtonfire Proud to be part of element

High Wycombe Office: Chiltern House, Stocking Lane, High Wycombe, HP14 4ND, United Kingdom T: +44 (0)1494 569750 W: www.warringtonfire.com

### Title:

Field of Application for: Falcon Stredor® 54 Doorsets

30 & For 60 Minutes Fire Resistance

### **Report No:**

WF377027 Revision A

### **Issue Date:**

6<sup>th</sup> July 2020

### Valid Until:

6<sup>th</sup> July 2025

### **Job Reference:**

428330

### **Prepared for:**

tenains the property of the enderice within is the for purpose. Lienainsthe property of Falcon Panel Hat Hat any pro Falcon Panel Products Ltd. Clock House, Station Approach, Shepperton, Middlesex, TW17 8AN ing an be found on products ite at

VFT-QU-FT-XXX (Issue 1 – 05.06.20) WFT-QU-FT-XXX (Issue 1 – 05.06.20) The version/revision stated on the front of this Field of Application supersedes all previous versions/revisions and must be used once an updated Field of Application supersedes all previous versions/revisions and must be used once an updated Field of Application has been issued under a new revision.

# Contents

# Page No.

1 For	eword	4
2 Pro	posal	5
3 Tes	st Data	5
3.1	Primary Test Evidence	6
3.2	Supplementary Test Evidence	20
4 Tec	chnical Specification	24
4.1	General	24
4.2	Intended Use	24
4.3	Door Leaf	24
4.4	Door Frames	24
4.5	Doorset Configurations & Maximum Leaf Sizes	25
5 Gei	neral Description of Leaf Construction	60
5.1	Leaf 1: Stredor 54 with Plywood Facing	60
5.2	Leaf 2: Stredor 54 with MDF Facing	62
5.3	Lippings: Leaf 1 & 2	63
5.4	Leaf Facing Materials: Leaf 1 & 2	64
5.5	Feature Grooves: Leaf 1 Only	64
5.6	Leaf Size Adjustment Prior to Machining: Leaf 1 & 2	66
6 Gla	zing	67
6.1	General	67
6.2	Glass & Glazing Systems	68
6.3	Glazing Beads & Installation Detail	71;m <sup>8</sup>
7 Doc	or Frame Construction	
7.1	Frame Specification	
7.2	Standard Frame	805 Lauch
7.3	Scalloped Frame	4.80 9 <sup>1</sup> 20.
7.4	Square Frame	
7.5	Frame Joints	
8 Ove	erpanels & Fanlights	
8.1	Transomed Overpanels	e835 PL, Net
8.2	Fanlights	\$84~~~~
9 Intu	imescent	
9.1	Essential Hardware Protection	86
9.2	Door Perimeter Intumescent Seal	87
	LON MANU BOCHESPERTUN AND BEINE MALLE	
	Fat This the anul cument recume interesting	
	* ````````````````````````````````````	re

10 Adhesives		
11 Hardware		
11.1 General	89	
11.2 Essential Hardware	90	
11.3 Locks & Latches	90	
11.4 Hinges	92	
11.5 Automatic Closing	94	
11.6 Flush Bolts	96	
11.7 Additional Items of Hardware	97	
12 Installation	102	
12.1 General	102	
12.2 Door Frame Installation: Frame 1	102	
12.3 Firestopping	104	
12.4 Packers	105	
12.5 Wall Types	105	
12.6 Onsite Leaf Size Adjustment	105	
12.7 Door Gaps	105	
12.8 Fixings	106	
13 Insulation	107	
14 Smoke Control	107	
14.1 General	107	
14.2 Further Considerations	107	
15 Conclusion	108	
16 Declaration by the Applicant	109	
17 Limitations	110 <sup>5105</sup>	
18 Validity		
19 Appendix A: Revisions	M. 112	
20 Appendix B: Performance Data		
third party certificon	nethat any hose.	
Products to an instruction and the property to envirth	idence the of providence of the providence of th	
Falcon Panel 1 actuin nent of stored us covering the covering to be part of the element		



### Foreword 1

This field of application report has been commissioned by Falcon Panel Products Limited and relates to the fire resistance of 30 and 60 minute fire resisting doorset designs.

The report is for National Application and has been written in accordance with the general principles outlined in BS EN 15725: 2010; Extended application reports on the fire performance of construction products and building elements.

This field of application (scope) uses established empirical methods of extrapolation and experience of fire testing similar doorsets, in order to extend the scope of application by determining the limits for the designs based on the tested constructions and performances obtained. The scope is an evaluation of the potential fire resistance performance, if the variations specified herein were to be tested in accordance with BS 476: Part 22: 1987.

This field of application has been written using appropriate test evidence generated at UKAS accredited laboratories<sup>1</sup>, to the relevant test standard. The supporting test evidence has been deemed appropriate to support the manufacturers stated door design and is summarised in section 3 and appendix B.

The scope presented in this report relates to the behaviour of the proposed door design variations under the particular conditions of the test; they are not intended to be the sole criterion for considering the potential fire hazard of the door assembly in use.

This field of application has been prepared and checked by product assessors with the necessary competence, who subscribe to the principles outlined in the Passive Fire Protection Forum (PFPF) guidelines to undertaking assessments. The aim of the PFPF guidelines is to give confidence to end-users that assessments that exist in the UK are of a satisfactory standard to be used for building control and other purposes.

The PFPF guidelines are produced by the UK Fire Test Study Group (FTSG) an association of the major fire testing laboratories in the UK and are published by the PFPF, the representative body for the passive fire protection industry in the UK.

Facon Para Produces the supports third partice for the open and produces the supports third partice for the door pare produces the supports the produces the supports the produce to the produces the supports the produce to the produces the support of the produces the support of the produces the produces

This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products It do purpose.

Individe the reside covering a wide range of products.

current details a subset of evidence for on an evidence is a subset of evidence for our website at a not on the formation out on the form

### 2 Proposal

It is proposed to consider the fire resistance performance of the specified proprietary Stredor 54 doorset designs, when used for 30 and 60 minutes fire resistance integrity, if the doorset designs were to be tested to the requirements of BS 476: Part 22: 1987, Fire tests on building materials and structures - Part 22: Method for determination of the fire resistance of non-load bearing elements of construction.

The field of application defined in this report is based on the fire resistance test evidence for the doorset design, which is summarised in section 3. Analysis of specific construction details that require assessment are given within this report against the relevant element of construction, as appropriate.

### 3 **Test Data**

The test evidence summarised below has been generated to support the fire resistance performance of the door designs that are the subject of this field of application.

Falcon Parel Produces inscalation and maintenance of the door assemblies.

Tanufacture installation and maintenance or me good assemmines. This document remains the property of reacting that that any produces in the property of the reader to ensure that the the reader to ensure the the the the reader to ensure the the the the reader to ensure the the the the the test of the the test of This the name of the evidence within is the products the property of the ensure that the purpose.

This do unent details a subset of evidenance of products.

The residence of products is at a subject of products is at a subject of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product

### Note:

Dimensions are in mm unless otherwise stated.

Abbreviations: (h) = height; (w) = width; (t) = thickness.

Latches fitted but disengaged for the test, are reported as 'unlatched'.

### 3.1 **Primary Test Evidence**

### 3.1.1 Test Report CFR1812191\_1

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Stredor Ply 54 incorporating ERA Surefire multi-point locking mechanism, STS glazing seals, STS perimeter seals, STS hardware protection, Pyrobelite 12 EI30/EW60 glass.

Date of Test:	01.Feb.2018
Identification of Test Body:	Cambridge Fire Research UKAS No. 4319
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd
Tested Product:	A single acting single leaf doorset comprising a Stredor 54 door blank with Pyrobelite 12 EI30/EW60 glazing tested as an insulated doorset. Door leaf was 3 point latched. LSASD
Tested Orientation:	Opening in towards heating condition
Summary of Test	Leaf:
Specimen:	Overall Size: 2192 (h) x 1046 (w) x 54 (t)
	Core: Falcon Panel Products Stredor 54
	Inner Core Layer: 4mm poplar ply (510kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
	Outer Core Layer: 20mm pine lamel (480kg/m³)
	Surface Core Layer: 5mm poplar ply with integral EV veneer face (510kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
	Lipping: Sapele (640kg/m <sup>3</sup> ), 8mm thick to all four edges
	Frame:
	Head & Jambs: Sapele (640kg/m3), 90 x 44mm thick, with 15mm thick planted stop.
	Frame Fixing: 2No. Ø5 x 100 csk steel woodscrews at 35 to 45.
	centres vertically.
	Threshold: Non-combustible.
	Intumescent:
	Frame Reveal/Leaf Edges: 2no 15x4mm Sealed Tight Solutions STS154 FO fitted 8mm and 34mm from hinge knuckle face.
	Meeting Stiles: N/A
	Bottom Leaf Edge: N/A
	Hardware:
	Hinges: 3no Zoo bearing butt hinge per jamb
	Closer: Rutland TS9205
	Lock/Latch: ERA Surefire Classic
	Lock/Latch Size: (Forend): $1635(h) \times 20(d) \times 2.5(t)$ . (Keep): $189(h) \times 38(d) \times 2(t)$ including tongue of $68 \times 14$ . (Centre lock/latch Body): $214(h) \times 58(w) \times 14(d)$
	Falon Pananufa dount soon and the soon and the sound of t



	Hook Box Size: (Body): 150(h) x 40(w) x 15(d). (Keep): 152(h) x 38(d) x 2(t) including tongue of 47 x 14mm
	Lock/Latch Status: Engaged
	Cylinder: ERA Fortress 3* TS007, KM553031
	Handle: Zoo ZPS Stainless steel lever handle on rose with escutcheons.
	Hardware Protection:
	Under Hinge: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent
	Encasing Lockcase: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent (2mm to vertical edge centre latch)
	Under Forend: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent
	Under Keep: Sealed Tight Solutions 2mm thick graphite based intumescent
-	<u>Glazing (Main Leaf):</u>
	Glass: AGC Pyrobelite 12mm thick EI30/EW60 glass with intumescent interlayers
	Aperture Size: 1215(h) x 523(w)
	Expansion Allowance: 3mm all round
1	Beading: Sapele beads 30x26mm with mitred corners and a 5x7mm bolection with a 25° splay
	Bead Fixing: 1.6g x 60mm long steel pins pneumatically fired at 30°-35°, 150mm centres & 50mm from corners
10 Mar 10	Glazing System:
	Glazing Perimeter: Sealed Tight Solutions STS104SG 10(w) x 2(t)
	Glazing Aperture Liner: Sealed Tight Solutions 302GL 30(w) x 2(t)
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
D. (	Integrity: 71 minutes
Performance:	Insulation: 34 minutes
Reason for Use	N/A
(if test failed)	
Failure Mode:	Initial Failure: Cotton pad at 71:19
(if test failed)	Further Failure: Sustained flaming at 71:48

### 3.1.2 **Test Report WF 369636**

,0001 The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary Inclusion of ISL glazing system, ISL hardware protection, Pyroplex perimeter seals and Promat Pyrobelite 60/0 12mm within Stredor 54 scope. Manufactured in mill reference E7

Inclusion of ISL Promat Pyrobelite	glazing system, ISL hardware protection, Pyroplex perimeter seals and 660/0 12mm within Stredor 54 scope. Manufactured in mill reference F7.
Date of Test:	26.Jul.2016
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762 July Control of C
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd
	Falcon Partine and a current actine contaction of the contact of t

eine nto

Tested Product:	An unlatched, glazed, double leaf single acting doorset ULSADD
Tested Orientation:	Opening in towards heating condition
Summary of Test Specimen:	Leaf: Overall Size: 2145mm(h) x 923/923mm(w) x 54mm(t)
	Core: Falcon Panel Products Stredor 54
	Inner Core Layer: 4mm poplar (510kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
	Outer Core Layer: 20.5mm thick (25-35mm wide) vertically orientated spruce and pine lamels (480 kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
_	Surface Core Layer: 4mm thick poplar (510kg/m <sup>3</sup> ), 0.5mm long grain steamed beech veneer (600kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
	Lipping: Sapele (640kg/m3), 6mm thick to all four edges
~ ~	Facing: Beech veneer (integral)
	Frame:
. /	Head & Jambs: Sapele (640kg/m3), 100mm(d) x 35mm(w), with 32mm(w) x 12mm(d) planted, pinned stop.
-	Frame Fixing: Mortice and tenon, screwed with 2no 5x100 steel woodscrews
	Threshold: Non-combustible
the second second	Intumescent:
	Frame Reveal: 2no 15x4mm Pyroplex FO8700 10mm apart, 7mm from the exposed face
1000	Meeting Stiles: 2no 15x4mm Pyroplex FO8700 10mm apart, 7mm from the exposed face
	Hardware:
	Hinges: 3no Smith & Locke bearing butt hinge Ref 2900G per jamb
	Closer: Arrone AR 1500
	Lock/Latch: Unbranded tubular steel mortice
	Lock/Latch Size: (Backset): 45mm. (Case): 67mm(d) x 21mm(h) x 16mm(w)
	Lock/Latch Status: Disengaged for test
	Flush Bolt: Smith & Locke Ref 5050J to top & bottom of slave leaf, disengaged for purpose of test
	Handle: Smith & Locke lever handle Ref 2812H
	Hardware Protection:
	Under Hinges: 2mm thick ISL Therm-A-Flex graphite
	Under Forend & Keep: 2mm thick ISL Therm-A-Flex graphite
	Encasing Lockcase: 2mm thick ISL Therm-A-Flex graphite
	Glazing (Main Leaf):
	Glass: Promat Pyrobelite 60/0 12mm
	Aperture Size: 200 x 1500mm $h^{2}$
	Beading: 31mm(h) x 22mm(w) including 5x5mm bolection and a 22° chamfer



	Bead Fixing: 1.6g x 60mm long steel pins, at 35°, 150mm centres & 50mm from corners.
	<u>Glazing (Slave Leaf):</u>
	Glass: Promat Pyrobelite 60/0 12mm
	Aperture Size: 200 x 1500mm
	Beading: 31mm(h) x 22mm(w) including 5x5mm bolection and a 22° chamfer
	Bead Fixing: 1.6g x 60mm long steel pins, at 35°, 150mm centres & 50mm from corners.
	Glazing System:
	Glazing Perimeter: ISL Therm-A-Bead 25x4mm, between glass & bead.
	Glazing Aperture Liner: ISL Therm-A-Line 54x2 between glass & aperture
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
Performance:	Integrity: 65 minutes Insulation: 35 minutes
Reason for Use	
(if test failed)	
Failure Mode:	Initial Failure: Cotton pad at 65:39
(if test failed)	Further Failure: Continuous flaming at 66:07

### Test Report WF 412601 (Doorset A) 3.1.3

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Stredor 54 alternative production comparison test (A against B). Manufactured in mill reference F7.

Date of Test:	18.Apr.2018	
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762	57
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd	2.
Tested Product:	Unlatched, single leaf, double acting doorset (DASD)	duč
Tested Orientation:	N/A certificate door product of the care product of the	5 <sup>e.</sup>
Summary of Test	Leaf:	ete
Specimen:	Overall Size: 2040mm (h) x 926mm (w) x 54mm (t)	, dui
	Core: Stredor 54 Ply (518kg/m3), 54mm thick	in sh
	Lipping: Sapele (635kg/m3), 18mm to hinge side, top & bottom, 8mm to lock side.	il all
	Facing: 0.5mm thick, Beech veneer (integral to core)	,9
	Frame: Out insteamail of the the per a before of	
	Head & Jambs: Sapele (635kg/m3), 100 x 44mm thick, with 8mm scallop @ 58mm radius	
	Falcon name average and a unent a comentary with	
	worringtonfire	

ocumer

	Frame Fixing: 4No 5 x 80mm long steel screws per jamb
	Threshold: Non-combustible
	Intumescent:
	Frame Reveal: 2 No 15x4 Lorient LP1504. Fitted centrally, 10mm apart.
	Hardware:
	Top Pivot/Strap: Rutland-PS.190
	Closer (Floor Spring): Rutland TS7104
	Lock/Latch: N/A
	Hardware Protection:
	Lining Strap Mortices: 2mm thick interdens
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
Derformenee	Integrity: 71 minutes
Penomance.	Insulation: 71 minutes
Reason for Use	
(if test failed)	
Failure Mode:	Initial Failure: Sustained flaming top strap position @ 71:26
(if test failed)	Further Failure: Sustained flaming top closing position @ 73:02

### **Test Report BMT/FEP/F16174** 3.1.4

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Inclusion of ISL glazing system, Pyroplex hardware protection, Pyroplex perimeter seals and Pilkington Pyrodur EW60-10 10mm CS within Stredor 54 scope. Manufactured in mill reference F7.

Date of Test:	13.Jun.2016
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd
Tested Product:	One glazed, unlatched single acting double doorset - ULSADD
Tested Orientation:	Opening in towards heating condition
Summary of Test	Leaf:
Specimen:	Overall Size: 2140mm(h) x 923/923mm(w) x 54mm(t)
	Core: Falcon Panel Products Stredor 54
	Inner Core Layer: 4mm poplar ply (450-550kg/m³)
	<i>Outer Core Layer:</i> 18mm thick vertically orientated spruce and pine lamels (450- 550kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
	Surface Core Layer: 7mm thick MDF (700kg/m³)
	Falcon Patintas de une porte de la cunerta de cuner



Performance:	Integrity: 68 minutes Insulation: N/A
Reason for Use (if test failed)	
Failure Mode: (if test failed)	Initial Failure: Continuous flaming at 68:16 Further Failure: Cotton pad at 71.05 Further Failure: Continuous flaming at 71.15

#### Test Report WF 374929 (Doorset B) 3.1.5

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Stredor 54 MDF FD60 with STS perimeter seals, hardware protection and glazing system.

Date of Test:	26.Oct.2016
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762
Sponsor:	Sealed Tight Solutions
Tested Product:	A one and a half leaf unlatched single acting doorset, with a glazed main leaf. ULSADD
Tested Orientation:	Opening in towards heating condition
Summary of Test	Leaf:
Specimen:	Overall Size: 2400mm(h) x 927/582mm(w) x 54mm(t)
	Core: Falcon Panel Products Stredor 54
	Inner Core Layer: 4mm poplar ply (450-550kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
	<i>Outer Core Layer:</i> 18mm thick vertically orientated spruce and pine lamels (450- 550kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
	Surface Core Layers: 7mm thick MDF (700kg/m³)
	Lipping: Sapele (640kg/m3), 6mm thick to all four edges
	Facing: N/A
	Frame:
	Head & Jambs: Sapele (640kg/m3), 95mm(d) x 32mm(w), with 30mm(w) x 15mm(d) planted, pinned sapele stop.
	Frame Fixing: Mortice and tenon, screwed with 2no 5x100 steel woodscrews
	Threshold: Non-combustible
	Intumescent:
	Frame Reveal/Leaf Edges: 2no 15x4mm Sealed Tight Solutions STS1504 fitted 10mm apart and 7mm from the exposed face.
	Meeting Stiles: 2no 15x4mm Sealed Tight Solutions STS1504 fitted 10mm apart and 7mm from the exposed face.
	Hardware:
	Falco mo This the rear tac unent real mentioned
	worringtonfire

ringto ire

	Hinges: 4no. EuroSpec bearing butt hinges per jamb
	Closer: Arrone AR 1500
	Lock/Latch: Zoo Hardware mortice latch
	Lock/Latch Size: (Forend): 130x22mm (the case cannot be bigger than forend but this is what test report says). (Case): 165x87x14mm. (Keep): 180x25.
	Lock/Latch Status: disengaged for test
	Flush Bolt: Zoo Hardware Ref: ZA503 Body: 205x22x40 Keep: 42x15
	Handle: Union steel lever type handle
	Hardware Protection:
	Under Hinge: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent
	Under Lockcase: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent (2mm to vertical edge centre latch)
	Under forend plate: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent
	Under flush bolt keep/flush bolt: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent
	Glazing (Main Leaf):
	Glass: Promat Securiglass Pyrobelite 12mm thick
	Aperture Size: 1500x200mm
	Beading: Sapele bead 24mm(h) x 23mm(d) including 5x7mm bolection and an 18° chamfer
	Bead Fixing: Pneumatically fired steel pins, 16 gauge x 50mm long, fitted 50mm from corners at 150mm centres at 45° to the face of the glass
	Glazing System:
	Glazing Perimeter: Sealed Tight Solutions ST105 GT3 9(w) x 3(t)
	Glazing Aperture Liner: Sealed Tight Solutions ST302GL 30(w) x 2(t)
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
Porformanco	Integrity: 67 minutes
r enormance.	Insulation: 67 minutes
Reason for Use	the empli
(if test failed)	in the second se
Failure Mode:	I Initial Failure: Continuous flaming at 67:15

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Inclusion of horizontal and vertical grooves in ply-faced 54mm thick Stredor, with extended leaf size envelopes and STS seals. duc

Date of Test:	24.Nov.2017	nel Protite entre pitty wine its a serine an onone
		acon Painte decumpon the detaile contail

ourned

Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd
Tested Product:	An unlatched single acting double doorset, with 3mm deep vertical and horizontal grooves to both faces of both leafs - ULSADD
Tested Orientation:	Opening in towards heating condition
Summary of Test Specimen:	Leaf: Overall Size: 2400mm(h) x 952/952(w) x 54mm(t) Core: Falcon Panel Products Stredor 54 Inner Core Layer: 4mm poplar ply (510kg/m <sup>3</sup> ) Outer Core Layers: 20mm spruce lamels (480kg/m <sup>3</sup> ) Surface Core Layer: 4mm poplar ply with (510kg/m <sup>3</sup> ) Core Feature: 10mm wide and 3mm deep 9No vertical and 24No horizontal decorative grooves to both faces. Lipping: Sapele (640kg/m <sup>3</sup> ), 8mm thick to all four edges.
	Frame: Head & Jambs: Sapele (640kg/m3), 90mm(d) x 32mm(w), with 25mm(w) x 12mm(d) planted, pinned sapele stop. Frame Fixing: 4No. Ø5 x 100 steel woodscrews Threshold: Non-combustible Intumescent:
	Frame Reveal/Leaf Edges: 2no 15x4mm Sealed Tight Solutions STS 154FO fitted 10mm apart and 7mm from the exposed face. Meeting Stiles: 2no 15x4mm Sealed Tight Solutions STS 154FO fitted 10mm
	apart and 7mm from the exposed face. <u>Hardware:</u> Hinges: 4no. Royde & Tucker H101 lift-off hinge Closer: Rutland TS.11204 cam action slide arm overhead closer Lock/Latch: Arrone steel mortice latch Lock/Latch Size: (Forend): 235x20mm. (Keep): 170x24mm, Lock/Latch Status: disengaged for test Handle: Arrone stainless steel lever type handle <u>Hardware Protection:</u> Under Hinge: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent Encasing latch body: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent Under forend plate: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent Under keep: Sealed Tight Solutions 1mm thick graphite based intumescent
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
	Falc mentioner the strength of



20

Performance:	Integrity: 57 minutes Insulation: 57 minutes
Reason for Use (if test failed)	Supporting evidence for feature grooves on Stredor 54 door leaf.
Failure Mode: (if test failed)	Initial Failure: Cotton Pad at 57:52 minutes, at the meeting stile, approximately 200mm up from threshold (in line with intumescent join). Further Failure: Cotton Pad at 68:00, top hinge corner R/H leaf.

### Note:

Although the test evidence reports an initial failure at 57 minutes, it is the opinion of Warringtonfire based on a technical review of the test report that the failure is not related to the specific feature of interest (grooves), and can therefore be used for this particular purpose.

### 3.1.7 Test Report WF 391032 (Doorset A)

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Inclusion of cable ways, multipoint locking system and electronic locking mechanism within ply-faced 54mm thick Stredor, with extended leaf size envelopes, STS seals and STS hardware protection.

Date of Test:	26.Oct.2017	
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762	
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd	
Tested Product:	One single acting single doorset, latched with a multi-point lock - LSASD	
Tested Orientation:	Opening in towards heating condition	
Summary of	Leaf:	2
Test Specimen:	Overall Size: 2395mm(h) x 1180(w) x 54mm(t)	
	Core: Falcon Panel Products Stredor 54	
	Inner Core Layer: 4mm poplar ply (510kg/m³)	5.0
	Outer Core Layers: 20.5mm spruce lamels (480kg/m³)	092
	Surface Core Layer: 4mm poplar ply inner facing (510kg/m <sup>3</sup> ) with 0.5mm thick long grain beech outer facing (600kg/m <sup>3</sup> )	ose.
	Core Feature: Ø11mm hole drilled through width of leaf central to leaf thickness.	etters.
	Lipping: Sapele (640kg/m³), 8mm thick to all four edges	ductions
	Frame: of Analizetty of Mithin cetto of	, web
	Head & Jambs: Sapele (640kg/m3), 80mm(d) x 32mm(w), with 20mm(w) x 10mm(d) integral stop.	JUN 10
	Frame Fixing: 4No. Ø5 x 100 steel woodscrews	7
	Threshold: Non-combustible	
	Intumescent:	
	Falcon main boo restructor intertación de la companya de	
	warringtonfire	



ringto

	Encasing closer body within leaf: 2mm thick raw graphite as supplied with Rutland ITS 11205
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
Performance:	Integrity: 43 minutes Insulation: 19 minutes
Reason for Use (if test failed)	Proving cable way, electronic locking system.
Failure Mode: (if test failed)	Initial Failure: Continuous flaming at 43:24, threshold Further Failure: Cotton Pad at 56:40, closer position in leaf head

### Test Report WF 412601 (Doorset B) 3.1.8

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Stredor 54 alternative production comparison test (A against B). Manufactured in mill reference F14.

Date of Test:	18.Apr.2018	
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762	
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd	
Tested Product:	Unlatched, single leaf, double acting doorset (DASD)	
Tested Orientation:	N/A	
Summary of Test	Leaf:	
Specimen:	Overall Size: 2040mm (h) x 926mm (w) x 54mm (t)	
	Core: Stredor 54 Ply (548kg/m3), 54mm thick	
	Lipping: Sapele (635kg/m3), 18mm to hinge side, top & bottom, 8mm to lock side.	
	Facing: 0.4mm thick, EV veneer (integral to core)	
	Frame:	Č.
	Head & Jambs: Sapele (635kg/m3), 100 x 44mm thick, with 8mm scallop	,•
	Frame Fixing: 4No 5 x 80mm long steel screws per jamb	ansil'
	Threshold: Non-combustible	
	Intumescent:	JCL' SI
	Frame Reveal: 2 No 15x4 Lorient LP1504. Fitted centrally, 10mm apart.	Ner
	Meeting Stiles: N/A	11 <sup>10</sup>
	Bottom Leaf Edge: N/A	/
	Hardware:	
	Top Pivot/Strap: Rutland-PS.190 Pt Jule of te pilit Jsine Saster Bar and Ale	
	Falon nanufac curresons the detail containing the state of the the	
	worringtonfire	

1<sup>e</sup>resime ringtor Jument

	Closer (Floor Spring): Rutland TS7104
	Lock/Latch: N/A
	Hardware Protection:
	Lining Strap Mortices: 2mm thick interdens
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
	Integrity: 71 minutes
Performance:	Insulation: 71 minutes
Reason for Use	
(if test failed)	
Failure Mode:	Initial Failure: Cotton Pad at threshold position @ 71:06
(if test failed)	Further Failure: Sustained flaming top closing position @ 75:30

## 3.1.9 Test Report WF 407334

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the primary data for:

Stredor 54 alternative production, similar arrangement to WF369636. Manufactured in mill reference F14.

Date of Test:	22.Nov.2018	
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762	
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd	
Tested Product:	Glazed, unlatched, double leaf, single acting doorset (ULSADD)	
Tested Orientation:	Opening in towards heating condition	
Summary of Test	Leaf:	60)
Specimen:	Overall Size: 2146mm (h) x 923/923mm (w) x 54mm (t)	
	Core: Stredor 54 Ply (513kg/m3), 54mm thick	~ <i>9</i> .
	Lipping: Sapele (640kg/m3), 7mm thick to all four edges	it duct
	Facing:0.4mm thick, EV veneer (integral to core)	,0° ,0°
	Frame:	905 Sil
	Head & Jambs: Sapele (640kg/m3), 100 x 32mm thick, with 32 x 12mm thick planted stop.	netter.
	Frame Fixing: 4No 8 x 100mm long steel screws per jamb	10du elosi
	Threshold: Non-combustible	SUL KO
	Intumescent:	ofili
	Frame Reveal/Leaf Edges: 2 No 15x4 Pyroplex FO8700. Fitted centrally, 8mm from exposed face, 10mm apart.	97
	Meeting Stiles: 2 No 15x4 Pyroplex FO8700. Fitted centrally, 7mm from exposed face, 10mm apart, main leaf only	

Falcon maining of resources to the telephone to the the telephone to the t

	Hardware:
	Hinges: 3 No Eurospec Enduromax Butt Hinges H2N1103/13/R
	Closer: Arrone AR3500
	Lock/Latch: Altro Eurospec Heavy Duty Tubular Mortice Latch Ref 376113
	Lock/Latch Size: (Lockcase): 24 x 61 x 17mm, (Forend): 59 x 25 x 2mm, (Keep): 65 x 40 x 3mm,
	Lock/Latch Status: disengaged for test
	Flush Bolt: Smith & Locke Ref 746895 101 x 16.
	Handle: Mitre Lever Handle on Rose Ref 625900
	Hardware Protection:
	Under Hinges: 2mm thick interdens
	Under Forend & Keep: 2mm thick interdens
_	Around Lockcase: 2mm thick interdens
	Under flush bolt keep: 2mm thick interdens
	Lining flush bolt mortice: 2mm thick interdens
	Glazing (Main Leaf):
	Glass: AGC Pyrobelite 12 12mm thick
	Aperture Size: 1500 high x 200 wide
	Glass Size: 1491 high x 191 wide
	Expansion allowance: 4.5mm all round
	Beading: Sapele (640kg/m3), 37 high x 28 deep 16° chamfer & 10x12 bolection.
	Bead Fixing: 1.6x1.4 x 60mm long steel pins (Timco Firmahold BG1664), at 35 degrees, 98-160mm centres & 35mm from corners.
	Glazing (Slave Leaf):
	Glass: AGC Pyrobelite 12 12mm thick
	Aperture Size: 1500 high x 200 wide
	Expansion allowance: 4.5mm all round
	Beading: Sapele (640kg/m3), 37 high x 28 deep 16° chamfer & 10x12 bolection.
	Bead Fixing: 1.6x1.4 x 60mm long steel pins (Timco Firmahold BG1664), at 35 degrees, 98-160mm centres & 35mm from corners.
	Glazing System:
	Glazing Perimeter: 25x4mm thick ISL Therm-A-Bead, between glass & bead.
	Glazing Aperture Liner: 2 x 54mm Therm-A- Line
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
Performance	Integrity: 65 minutes
Performance:	Insulation: 65 minutes* (glazing not evaluated)
Reason for Use (if test failed)	rodute installation the received of enderound do
Failure Mode:	Initial Failure: Cotton Pad Test at top meeting edge @ 65:15



10

(if test failed)

Further Failure: N/A

# 3.2 Supplementary Test Evidence

### 3.2.1 Test Report WF 413865

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the supplementary data for:

Strelip® 60 engineered timber lippings.

Date of Test:	13.May.2019	
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762	
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd	
Tested Product:	One unlatched, double-leaf, single acting doorset - ULSADD	
Tested Orientation:	Hung opening in towards heating condition	
Summary of Test Specimen:	Leaf: Overall Size: 2135mm(h) x 935/935mm(w) x 54mm(t) Core: Falcon Panel Products Strebord 54mm particleboard (590kg/m³) Lipping: Falcon Panel Products Strelip® 60 (661kg/m³), 8mm thick to all four edges. Frame: Head & Jambs: Sapele (644kg/m³), 100mm(d) x 32mm(w), with a 32mm x 12mm planted stop. Frame Fixing: 4No. Ø5mm x 100mm steel woodscrews. Threshold: Non-combustible Intumescent: Meeting Stile:1no 15x4mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd LP1504 type 617 fitted 7mm from the exposed face of the master leaf 1no 15x4mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd LP1504DS type 617 fitted 32mm from the exposed face of the master leaf Frame Reveal: 1no 15x4mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd LP1504 sodium silicate seal fitted 7mm from the exposed face of the frame reveal. 1no 15x4mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd LP1504DS sodium silicate seal fitted 32mm from the exposed face of the frame reveal. 1no 15x4mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd LP1504DS type 617 fitted 32mm from the exposed face of the master leaf Frame Reveal: 1no 15x4mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd LP1504DS type 617 fitted 32mm from the exposed face of the frame reveal <u>Smoke/Acoustic Seals:</u> Leaf: 1no 15x4mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd LP1504DS type 617 fitted 32mm from the exposed face of the frame reveal <u>Hardware:</u> Hinges: 4no Carlisle Brass/Eurospec HIN1433/13 steel ball bearing butt Closer: Astra Door Controls 4003 concealed jamb mounted closer: Body: Ø28mm x 212mm(l) Forend (leaf side): 32mm(w) x 106mm(h) x 3mm(t) Lock/Latch: Eurospec Easi-Exit DLS7260ESC Lockcase: 150mm(h) x 86mm(w) x 14mm(d)	ted. ted.



	Forend plate: 235mm(h) x 24mm(w) x 5mm(t)
	Keep: 175mm(h) x 22mm(w) {with 40mm(w) strike} x 1.5mm(t)
	Cylinder: Assa Abloy/Union J2X28 Euro Thumbturn Cylinder
	Handle: Zoo Hardware Stanza ZPZ090SC lever on rose
	Escutcheon: Eurospec A Spec Euro, Ø50mm x 6mm(t)
	Flushbolt: Zoo ZAS03RSS, 205mm(h) x 20mm(w) x 38mm(return) x 4mm(t) with 19mm x 42mm receiver/socket
	Hardware Protection:
	Under hinge blade: 1mm thick Intumescent Seals Ltd Therm-A-Strip
	Encasing closer body: 1mm thick Intumescent Seals Ltd Therm-A-Strip
	Under closer forend (leaf side): 1mm thick Intumescent Seals Ltd Therm-A-Strip
	Under closer forend (hinge side): 1mm thick Intumescent Seals Ltd Therm-A-Strip
	Around lockcase (cheeks only): 1mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd MAP
	Under lockcase forend plate: 1mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd MAP
	Under keep: 1mm Lorient Polyproducts Ltd MAP
	Under flushbolt: 2mm thick Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd graphite based intumescent
Test Standard:	BS 476: Part 22: 1987
	Integrity: 70 minutes
Performance:	Insulation: 70 minutes
Reason for Use	
(if test failed)	
Failure Mode:	Initial Failure: Continuous flaming at 70:13 – top meeting edge.
(if test failed)	Further Failure: Cotton pad at 73:30 – top hanging corner, left leaf.

### Test Report WF 414781 3.2.2

The referenced test report, the essential details of which are summarised below, is the supplementary data for:

Strelip and concealed overhead closer for 30 minute applications

Date of Test:	07.Jun.2019
Identification of Test Body:	Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Ltd. UKAS No. 1762
Sponsor:	Falcon Panel Products Ltd
Tested Product:	An unlatched, single acting double doorset with glazing - ULSADD
Tested Orientation:	Hung opening in towards heating condition
Summary of Test Specimen:	Leaf: Overall Size (Both Leafs): 2040mm(h) x 935(w) x 44mm(t) Core: Falcon Panel Products Stredor 44 Inner Core Layer: 2mm poplar ply (594-613kg/m <sup>3</sup> ) Outer Core Layers: 13mm thick vertically orientated pine lamels (594-613kg/m <sup>3</sup> ) Surface Core Layers: 8mm thick MDF (700kg/m <sup>3</sup> ) Lipping: Strelip 30 (686-698kg/m3), 8mm thick to all four edges. <u>Frame:</u>
	Falcon Pranute docume solution and the solution of the solutio



warringtonfire

	Integrity: 33 minutes
Performance:	Insulation (I <sub>1</sub> ): 10 minutes
	Insulation (I <sub>2</sub> ): 10 minutes
Reason for Use	
(if test failed)	
Failure Mode:	Initial Failure: Cotton pad at 33:44 – latch position.
(if test failed)	Further Failure: N/A



### **Technical Specification** 4

#### 4.1 General

The technical specification for the proposed door assembly is given in the following sections and is based on the test evidence for the door design, summarised in section 3.

#### 4.2 **Intended Use**

The intended use of the proposed door assembly is summarised below:

A pedestrian doorset including any frame, door leaf or leaves which is provided to give a fire resisting capability when used for the closing of permanent openings in fire resisting separating elements, which together with the building hardware and any seals (whether provided for the purpose of fire resistance or smoke control or for other purposes such as draught or acoustics) form the assembly.

#### **Door Leaf** 4.3

#### Leaf 1: Stredor 54 with Plywood Facing 4.3.1

The construction for door leaves of this design comprises a 3-layer core with a plywood facing, lipped on all four edges.

The door designs can include:

- 1. Glazing
- 2. Grooves
- 3. Decorative facings
- 4. Decorative planted on timber mouldings

See section 5.1 for further constructional detail.

#### 4.3.2 Leaf 2: Stredor 54 with MDF Facing

The construction for door leaves of this design comprises a 3-layer core with an MDF facing, third party certification for the processing lipped on all four edges.

The door designs can include:

A.4.1 Frame 1: Timber The construction for door frames of this design comprises of a hardwood timber. Internation of the door frames see exercise to the door ince from an extensiv Facon Panel Products Ito allati This document remains the This document remains the the rene responsibility using the evide



### 4.5 **Doorset Configurations & Maximum Leaf Sizes**

#### 4.5.1 General

The evaluation of the leaf size for each door leaf type and doorset configuration is based on the tests listed in section 3 and takes into account:

- the margin of over performance above 60 minutes integrity for the design has been used for 60 minute applications.
- the margin of over performance above 30 minutes integrity for the design has been used for 30 minute applications. The design used is identical to the 60 minute design.
- the characteristics exhibited during test and
- the doorset configuration tested.

The evaluation of the permitted configuration included in this field of application is based on the configuration tested. The principle is that the more components, i.e. door leaves and overpanel – the harder it becomes to pass a test. This is because the junction between two door leaves or door leaf and overpanel introduces a discontinuity into the doorset which can cause failures. This leads to the following statements:

- A test on a double doorset is more onerous than a test on a single doorset
- A test on a doorset with a flush overpanel is more onerous than a test on a doorset without an overpanel. A flush overpanel has the same thickness as the door leaf and is flush with the leaves.
- A test on an unlatched doorset is more onerous than a test on a latched doorset
- A test on an unlatched single acting doorset is considered to be equivalent to a double acting doorset – BUT this does not cover doorsets with flush overpanels
- A doorset with transomed overpanel is considered to perform as the same as a similar doorset without an overpanel. This is because the transom structurally separates the overpanel from the doorset.

The leaf size for each door leaf option and configuration is linked to the intumescent specification and frame option. The following section details the maximum leaf size for each door leaf option and configuration based on the intumescent, hardware and frame details on tested.

Doorsets with reduced dimensions are deemed to be less onerous. Therefore, doors with dimensions that are less than given in the door leaf envelopes (for the relevant intumescent specification) in the following sections are covered and may be manufactured.

#### 4.5.2 Orientation

The primary fire resistance tests for these designs were conducted with the doorset hung such that the door leaf opened towards the fire, which is considered the most onerous orientation in terms of fire resistance performance for timber based doorsets.

Found on our website Table 2 of clause 13.4.1 BS EN 1634-1:2014 +A1:2018 states that the results obtained for timber doorsets tested opening into the furnace can be used to support the use of timber doorsets opening away from the furnace. the evidence widerance

#### Configuration 4.5.3

The table below shows the permitted configurations for the Stredor 54 doorset designs, with hanufactured us st cument details the abbreviation and full description of the each configuration. ocumentation



900r

The following sections detail the assessed maximum leaf size envelops for each permitted configuration based on the intumescent specification and door frame tested.

Doorset Configurations				
Ref.	Abbreviation	Description		
А	LSASD	Latched Single Acting Single Doorset		
В	ULSASD	Unlatched Single Acting Single Doorset		
С	DASD	Double Acting Single Doorset		
D	LSASD+OP	Latched Single Acting Single Doorset + Overpanel NOT PERMITTED		
Е	ULSASD+OP	Unlatched Single Acting Single Doorset + Overpanel NOT PERMITTED		
F	DASD + OP	Double Acting Single Doorset + Overpanel NOT PERMITTED		
G	LSADD	Latched Single Acting Double Doorset		
н	ULSADD	Unlatched Single Acting Double Doorset		
I	DADD	Double Acting Double Doorset		
J	LSADD+OP	Latched Single Acting Double Doorset + Overpanel NOT PERMITTED		
к	ULSADD+OP	Unlatched Single Acting Double Doorset + Overpanel NOT PERMITTED		
L	DADD + OP	Double Acting Double Doorset + Overpanel		

### Note:

- Unequal leaf double doorsets are covered by this Field of Application. The smaller For double doorsets both leaves must comply with the door leaf envelope size limitations. 1. size produ
- Jr leaf e entropy of the supports third party contraction of the supports third party contraction of the supports the supports the supports the supports the supports the support of the s Quinent details a subset of evidence of products. This document remains the property of Factor Panet that the property of Factor Panet that the the property of Factor Panet that the the reader to remain this the property of Factor Panet to the the evidence within is the the the evidence within is the the the evidence within is the evidenc This the responsibility of the reader to ensure that 2. Perceime covering and erange of products iter

### LSASD Configuration: Leaf Size Envelopes & Intumescent 4.5.4 **Specification**

#### 4.5.4.1 Leaf 1 + Frame 1 Doorset















This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

Mareagine covering and erange of products, the at

Intumescent Specification for LSASD							
Leaf 1 (Plywood Faced) with Frame 1 (Hardwood)							
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size				
AH1 (CFR1812191_1) Multi Point Lock	STS154FO	Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	<b>Head &amp; Jambs:</b> 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal.				
AH2 (WF369636)	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.				
AH3 (WF412601A)	LP1504	Lorient Polyproducts Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.				
AH6 (WF392155) Feature Grooves	STS154FO	Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.				
AH7 (WF391032A) Multi Point Lock with Electric motor box	STS154FO <sup>1</sup>	Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	<b>Head &amp; Jambs:</b> 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal.				

### Note:

esistic sourcestic and the procession and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic and the procession of the door assertic the door assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic the door assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic the door assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic the door assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic the door assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic the door assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic assertic the door assertic the door assertic astertastertic astertasterti Read Produces installation and maintenance of the contraction of the supports third the open section of the contraction of the Leaf size and intumescent specification permitted <u>only</u> for 30 minutes fire resisting 1. Anutacure, notaliation and maintenance of the coor ascenducts that the property of the reader to ensure that that any product of the reader to ensure that that any product of the reader to ensure that the the reader to ensure that the the reader to ensure that the to ensure the to ensure the to ensure the to ensure that the to ensure the toe ensure the to ensure the to ensure the to ensure the to doorsets with ERA multiple point lock with electric motor box. This document reading the property of taken endering the property of the reader to ensure that the property of the reader to ensure that the for purpose.

### 4.5.4.2 Leaf 2 + Frame 1 Doorset



AH4 - FO8700 AH5 - STS154FO





Picture Internet and the condition of th 2<sup>cument</sup> details a subset of Entreeine covering and

This do

This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

nent details a cuber contract on an entering a contract on the contract on the contract on the contract on the contract of the

### 4.5.5 **ULSASD Configuration: Leaf Size Envelopes & Intumescent Specification**

#### Leaf 1 + Frame 1 Doorset 4.5.5.1





· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
BH2	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:
(WF369636)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm
BH3 (WF412601A)	LP1504	Lorient Polyproducts Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.
BH6 (WF392155) Feature Grooves	STS154FO	Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.
		Falcon main this	<sup>2</sup> <sup>the</sup> rest actor in the rest intertainty of the second s

roduct

#### 4.5.5.2 Leaf 2 + Frame 1 Doorset



This document reaming the property of Falcon Panel Products Ind.

This document details a subset of evidenance of products.

nent details a cuber contract on an entering a contract on the contract on the contract on the contract on the contract of the


	Intume	escent Specific ULSASD	ation for	<sup>6</sup> 9)		
	Leaf 2 (MDF Fa	aced) with Fran	ne 1 (Hardwood)			
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size	Itd. ct		
BH4 —	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs: still the ad alpho and	205e. (1)		
(BMT/FEP/F16174)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.	an extensi		
BH5 (WF374929B)	STS154FO	Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.	producebsil		
E ALCON Panel Produces particular de la contraction de la contrac						

### **DASD Configuration: Leaf Size Envelopes & Intumescent** 4.5.6 **Specification**

#### Leaf 1 + Frame 1 Doorset 4.5.6.1



nent details a subset of evidence from an extensive nent details a subset of evide range on our website at nent details a subset on can be found ut door into the course of the course o



· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
CH2	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:
(WF369636)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm
CH3 (WF412601A)	LP1504	Lorient Polyproducts Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.
СН6	STS154FO	Sealed Tight	Head & Jamps: cent ct nide county to
(WF392155)		Solutions Ltd	2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm
Feature Grooves		Panelufact	apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.
		falcon mannish	<sup>2</sup> <sup>the</sup> ratio and the set of the

.0

oduct

# 4.5.6.2 Leaf 2 + Frame 1 Doorset







Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size procesting	
CH4 (BMT/FEP/F16174)	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.	
CH5 —— (WF374929B)	STS154FO	Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	Head & Jambs: 2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.	
Falcon Pare products in statute in the the event of the found while found whil				

This document reaming the property of Falcon Panel Products Ind.

This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

nent details a cuber contract on an entering a contract on the contract on the

### LSADD Configuration: Leaf Size Envelopes & Intumescent 4.5.7 **Specification**

#### Leaf 1 + Frame 1 Doorset 4.5.7.1







Intumescent Specification for						
LSADD						
Le	af 1 (Plywood	Faced) with Fr	rame 1 (Hardwood)			
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size			
GH2	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:			
(WF369636)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
- A			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			
GH6	STS154FO	Sealed Tight	Head & Jambs:			
(WF392155)		Solution Ltd	2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm			
Feature Grooves			apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			



#### 4.5.7.2 Leaf 2 + Frame 1 Doorset









Intumescent Specification for					
	Leaf 2 (MDF Fa	aced) with Fran	ne 1 (Hardwood)		
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size		
GH4 —	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:		
(BMT/FEP/F16174)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.		
			Meeting Edge:		
- A			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.		
GH5 —	STS154FO	Sealed Tight	Head & Jambs:		
(WF374929B)		Solutions Ltd	2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.		
			Meeting Edge:		
			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.		



#### 4.5.8 **ULSADD Configuration: Leaf Size Envelopes & Intumescent Specification**

#### Leaf 1 + Frame 1 Doorset 4.5.8.1



anuacture, instalation and mainter and reader to ensure that that any products the reader to ensure that that the reader to ensure that that the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure t This document reaming the property of Falcon Panel Products Ind. This document details a subset of a wide range of products. nent details a cuber contract on an entering a contract on the contract on the



tarcon Pand Produces installation and the product of the produces installation and the product of the contract of the products in the products in the products in the product of the produ

Intumescent Specification for						
ULSADD						
Le	af 1 (Plywood	Faced) with Fr	ame 1 (Hardwood)			
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size			
HH2 —	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:			
(WF369636)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
- A			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			
HH6 —	STS154FO	Sealed Tight	Head & Jambs:			
(WF392155)		Solutions Ltd	2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm			
Feature Grooves			apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			



# 4.5.8.2 Leaf 2 + Frame 1 Doorset









Intumescent Specification for						
ULSADD						
	Leaf 2 (MDF Fa	aced) with Fran	ne 1 (Hardwood)			
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size			
HH4	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:			
(BMT/FEP/F16174)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
- A			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			
HH5	STS154FO	Sealed Tight	Head & Jambs:			
(WF374929B)		Solutions Ltd	2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			



### **DADD Configuration: Leaf Size Envelopes & Intumescent** 4.5.9 **Specification**

#### Leaf 1 + Frame 1 Doorset 4.5.9.1









Intumescent Specification for						
DADD						
Le	af 1 (Plywood	Faced) with Fr	ame 1 (Hardwood)			
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size			
IH2	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:			
(WF369636)			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
- A			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			
IH6	STS154FO	Sealed Tight	Head & Jambs:			
(WF392155)		Solution Ltd	2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm			
Feature Grooves			apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.			
			Meeting Edge:			
			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.			



# 4.5.9.2 Leaf 2 + Frame 1 Doorset









Intumescent Specification for							
	DADD						
	Leaf 2 (MDF Fa	aced) with Fran	ne 1 (Hardwood)				
Intumescent Spec. Reference (Test Reference)	Make / Type	Manufacturer / Supplier	Location & Size				
IH4 —	FO8700	Pyroplex Ltd	Head & Jambs:				
(BMT/FEP/F16174)			2no 15x4.Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.				
			Meeting Edge:				
- A			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.				
IH5 —	STS154FO	Sealed Tight	Head & Jambs:				
(WF374929B)		Solutions Ltd	2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart, in frame reveal or leaf edges.				
			Meeting Edge:				
			2no 15x4. Fitted centrally and 10mm apart in main leaf edge.				



#### **General Description of Leaf Construction** 5

#### 5.1 Leaf 1: Stredor 54 with Plywood Facing

There are two types of plywood faced Stredor 54 door leaf construction, the details of which are given in section 5.1.1 and section 5.1.2, and their comparative behaviour is discussed in section 5.1.3.

#### Leaf 1: Stredor 54 with Plywood Facing (Type 1) 5.1.1

The basic tested construction of this door leaf design comprises the following:

	Leaf 1 (Type 1) Construction Details					
Element		Material	Dimensions (mm)	Minimum Density (kg/m³)		
	Inner	Poplar ply		4 (t)	510	
Core	Outer	Spruce & Pine – vertically orientated and butt jointed		20.5 (t) x 28 (w) (nominal individual lamel size)	480	
Facing F		Dhave a d	Inner: Cross grain Poplar	4 (t)	510	
		Plywood	Outer: Long grain Beech	0.5 (t)	600	

The leaf must be lipped on all four edges as specified in section 5.3.

The minimum leaf thickness after calibration is 53mm (i.e. a maximum of 0.5mm from one side).

The minimum leaf thickness after finishes applied is 54mm.







#### 5.1.2 Leaf 1: Stredor 54 with Plywood Facing (Type 2)

	Leaf 1 (Type 2) Construction Details					
Element			Material	Dimensions (mm)	Minimum Density (kg/m³)	
	Inner	Poplar ply		4 (t)	510	
Core	Outer	Pine – ver butt jointed	tically orientated and	20 (t) x 25 – 35 (w) (nominal individual lamel size)	480	
Facing		Dhave ad	Inner: Long grain poplar	4.2 (t)	510	
		Flywood	Outer: Long grain beech	0.4 (t)	600	

The basic tested construction of this Stredor 54 door leaf design comprises the following:

The leaf must be lipped on all four edges as specified in section 5.3.

The minimum leaf thickness after calibration is 53mm (i.e. a maximum of 0.5mm from one side).

The minimum leaf thickness after finishes applied is 54mm.





Comparison of Leaf 1: Type 1 & Type 2 The Type 1 and Type 2 plywood faced Stredor 54 door leaves are of similar construction but are manufactured in two different mills. Type 1 is manufactured in mill referenced F7. while Type 2 is manufactured in mill referenced F14. rea .anufac .anufac .anufac .anufac .anufac ne responsibilitied using the f This document remaining THE STRE LESPONSIBILITY OF Ine resime coverine a cument details a sube



Test report WF 412601 is a comparison test between the Type 1 and Type 2 Stredor 54 door leaves, used in a double action single leaf doorset design, with the same schedule of components.

The overall performance of both door leaves is summarised below:

Type 1 (specimen A) achieved: 71:26 minutes fire integrity and insulation. Failure by way of sustained flaming at top strap location. A maximum deflection of 20mm at the top closing corner at 60 minutes.

Type 2 (specimen B) achieved: 71:06 minutes fire integrity and insulation. Failure by way of cotton pad ignition at the threshold. A maximum deflection of 21mm at the top closing corner at 60 minutes.

Also, test reports WF 369636 and WF 407334 can be used for comparison between the Type 1 and Type 2 Stredor 54 door leaves, used in a single action double leaf doorset design, with the same schedule of components.

The overall performance of both door leaves is summarised below:

Type 1 (WF 369636) achieved a: 65:39 minutes fire integrity and insulation. Failure by way of cotton pad ignition at top meeting edge. A maximum deflection of 7/14mm at the centre of meeting stile at 60 minutes.

Type 2 (WF 407334) achieved a: 65:15 minutes fire integrity and insulation. Failure by way of cotton pad ignition at top meeting edge. A maximum deflection of -1/-12mm at the bottom of meeting stile at 60 minutes.

Based on the similarities in performance of both door leaves as reported in the tests referenced above, it is the opinion of Warringtonfire that the two door types are equivalent and are therefore interchangeable.

#### 5.2 Leaf 2: Stredor 54 with MDF Facing

	Leaf 2 Construction Details							
Element		Material	Dimensions (mm)	Minimum Density (kg/m³)				
Core	Inner	Poplar ply	4 (t)	450 - 550 series				
	Outer Vertically orientated finger- jointed spruce lamels		18 (t) x 25 – 30 (w) (nominal individual lamel size)	450 - 550 Productor				
Facing		MDF	7 (t) of the normal per	700 with a constant				

The basic tested construction of this door leaf design comprises the following:

The leaf must be lipped on all four edges as specified in section 5.3.

The minimum leaf thickness after calibration is 53mm (i.e. a maximum of 0.5mm from one Hanufactured using unent details a sul resime covering In Frantis 54mm.<sup>t</sup> rest littled side).

The minimum leaf thickness after finishes applied is 54mm.



Figure 5.3 - Leaf 2 - Stredor 54 with MDF facing

#### 5.3 Lippings: Leaf 1 & 2

Doors must be lipped on all edges, and must comply with the following specification:

Lippi	ing Specification				
Material	Size (mm)	Minimum Density (kg/m³)			
Hardwood: All lipping timber must meet or exceed class J30 as specified in BS EN 942:	Flat Lipping = 6–11 thick with a maximum of 2 profiling permitted at corners of lipping (see frame detailing in section 7)	0.4.0			
2007 (subject to adequate repair of any defects) The use of Beech ( <i>Fagus sylvatica</i> ) is NOT permitted.	Rounded Lipping = 8–18 thick with a radius matching the distance between leaf edge and floor pivot (see frame detailing in section 7)	1 640			
Strelip® Engineered Hardwood	Flat Lipping = 8–10 thick with a maximum of 2 profiling permitted at corners of lipping (see standard frame detailing in section 7)	661 proceed			
	Rounded Lipping = Not permitted	eo Pare Hat an			
Note:	with the range fait	We the fit to			
1. Lippings must not conceal intun	Lippings must not conceal intumescent materials.				
2. A 2.5° chamfer is permitted to the door gaps meet the requirement	A 2.5° chamfer is permitted to the lipping at the leading edge of leaves providing the door gaps meet the requirements of section 12.				
<ol> <li>Rounded lippings must only be leaves.</li> </ol>	Rounded lippings must only be fitted to the hanging edges of double acting door leaves.				

### Note:

- 1.
- eac 2.rds the hanging the hanging the hanging the document rem this document is 2.
- herespondulatured using Insocument esponsibility 3. ul cument details a sub Insteam covering



#### 5.4 Leaf Facing Materials: Leaf 1 & 2

#### 5.4.1 **Decorative & Protective Facings**

The following additional facing materials specified below are also permitted on this door design since they would degrade rapidly under test conditions without significant effect.

Facing Material Specification			
Facing Material	Maximum Permitted Thickness (mm)		
Paint	0.5		
Timber veneers	2		
Plastic & resin laminates	2		
Cellulosic Foils	0.4		

### Note:

- 1. Metallic facings are not permitted except for push plates and kick plates.
- 2. The door leaf thickness may be reduced by a total maximum of 0.5mm to each face (a maximum of 1mm in total) for calibration purposes, only in order to accommodate one of the additional facings shown in the table above.
- 3. Materials must not conceal intumescent strips.
- 4. PVC/plastic laminates must not be applied to the edges of leaves.

#### 5.4.2 **Decorative Planted on Timber Mouldings**

Decorative mouldings can be applied to the door leaves provided the following criteria is adhered to:

The mouldings:

- 1. Are surface mounted to the door
- 2. Are no higher than 30mm i.e. proud of the door
- 3. Are no wider than 50mm
- 4. Cover no more than 20% of the door leaf area
- 5. Are no closer than 80mm to the door leaf edge
- for the prof Are bonded into position and fixed in place with small pins at 150mm centres (min ) 6. , of fire dr FOTPUTPOSE penetrating the door leaf by no more than 12mm

Based on test evidence WF 392155, plywood faced Stredor 54 door leaves may be grooved in line with the specification given in the table below. Grooves may coincide with the bottom of glazed exerting of ent details a subset of an de range of products. Refeesing covering and range of products. JP & bottom of glazed apertures if required.

estine eacon Panel Products to allatic Insocument entering of the rest Feature grooves are permitted for both 30 and 60 minutes fire resisting doorsets. This document remains



This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

Reference overing and range of products the at

Door Leaf Groove Specification				
Element		Details		
Max. groove size (mm)	10mm (w) x 3mm (d	)		
Inserts	Not permitted			
Proximity to leaf	Horizontal grooves	Must be no closer than 70mm from bottom or top edges		
edges (mm)	Vertical grooves	Must be no closer than 70mm from either side		
Groove spacing (mm)	The grooves must be no closer than 90mm apart. Maximum 24No horizontal grooves & maximum 9No vertical grooves per leaf face. Vertical & horizontal grooves may intersect each other.			
Orientation	Vertical or horizontal			
Configuration	Latched & Unlatched, Single & Double Acting, Single & Double Leaf Doorsets			
Leaf option	Leaf 1 only			
l eaf size range	See section 4.5 for leaf size envelopes based on test report WF 392155.			
	Leaf sizes specified for 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets is applicable to 60 minutes fire resisting doorsets.			
Frame option	Frame 1			
Intumescent seal dimensions	15x4mm STS154FC	15x4mm STS154FO		

### Note:

Live fa Read Products It desupports third to and the or the desupports third to attend to a the desupport attend to a tend to Butt jointing of intumescent seals in Stredor 54 doorset containing decorative face grooves is not permitted. 1. hand a current renains the property of reacting that that any products the reader to ensure that the to ensure the to ensure that the to ensure that the to ensure the to ensure that the to ensure the toe ensure th This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid. This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Lid.



(A): Elevation detail

# Figure 5.4 – Decorative groove detail on Leaf 1

# 5.6 Leaf Size Adjustment Prior to Machining: Leaf 1 & 2

The door leaves may be altered in line with the specification given in the table below, prior to the machining for hardware.

Pre-machining Leaf Size Adjustment Specification						
Element	Reduction					
Leaf	The size of the leaf may be reduced in height or width without restriction for manufacturing purposes, providing the finished leaf is lipped in accordance with section 5.3					
Lipping	The timber lipping thickness can be reduced after it has been glued in place, providing it is not reduced below the minimum stated in section 5.3					
	Falcon Page Produces the support of the product of					

# 6 Glazing

# 6.1 General

The tests evidence e.g. CFR1812191\_1 and WF374929B, summarised in section 3, demonstrates that the Stredor 54 doorset is capable of tolerating glazed apertures, whilst providing a margin of over-performance.

Glazing is therefore acceptable on these doorsets, in line with the following parameters:

Maximum area of glazing:

- 1. For Leaf  $1 = 1.1 \text{m}^2$
- 2. For Leaf  $2 = 1.1 \text{m}^2$ .

**Note:** The maximum glazed area is the total area of glazing and may be made up of more than 1 aperture.

Glazed openings must comply with the following:

- 1. Not be less than 150mm from any door edge.
- 2. Multiple apertures are acceptable up to the maximum approved area, with a minimum dimension of 80mm between apertures.
- 3. The aperture shape is not restricted, providing the intumescent material and beads are proven to be compatible with that shape.



Report No: WF377027 Revision A Page 68 of 116

## 6.2 Glass & Glazing Systems

Based on the tests evidence in section 3, the following glass types and glazing systems in the table below have been assessed and are permitted for use on the Stredor 54 doorset.

The table below specifies the maximum assessed area of glazing for an individual glazed aperture using the following permitted glass type and glazing system.

	Glass & Glazing System Specification Maximum Assessed Area (m <sup>2</sup> )										
			н	$\square$	G	lazing System	& Manufactu	rer	U		
		1.	2.	3.	4.	5.	6.	7.	8.	9.	10
(	Glass Type & Manufacturer (Test Reference)	Therm A Glaze 60 Intumescent Seals Ltd	Fireglaze 60 Sealmaster UK Ltd	System 36 Plus Lorient Polyproducts Ltd For 30 minutes application only	System 90+ Lorient Polyproducts Ltd	Pyroglaze 60 Mann McGowan Ltd	System 63 (circular apertures only) Lorient Polyproducts Ltd For 30 minutes application only	STS105GT3 /ST302GL Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd <sup>2</sup>	ISL60 Plus Intumescent Seals Ltd	Fireglaze Tape Sealmaster UK Ltd	STS104SG /ST302GL Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd <sup>2</sup>
1.	Pyroshield 2 Pilkington UK Ltd <sup>4</sup>	0.715	0.715	0.715	0.4	0.715	0.715	ation for the products It	ر م <sup>رز 0</sup> .54	0.54	×
2.	Pyran S Schott Glass Ltd	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	tstill astrance	All Pare that our are and a strate of a strate that a strate that a strate of	e <sup>rters</sup> , 0.54	0.54	×
3.	Pyrodur 60-10 Pilkington UK Ltd	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1 tras	ation and steppedent	presidence of the providence o	0.54	0.54	1.1



Field of Application for: Falcon Panel Products Ltd Stredor® 54 Doorsets

### Report No: WF377027 Revision A Page 69 of 116

	(BMT/FEP/F16174)										
4.	Pyroguard EW Maxi Pyroguard UK Ltd	0.58	0.58	0.58	0.58	0.58	0.58	0.58	0.54	0.54	0.58
5.	Pyranova 15-S2.0 Schott Glass Ltd	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	0.54	0.54	1.1
6.	Pyrobelite 12 AGC Flat Glass UK (WF374929B) (CFR1812191_1)	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	0.54	0.54	1.1
7.	Pyrodur 60-20 Pilkington UK Ltd	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	0.54	0.54	1.1
8.	Pyroguard El30 Pyroguard UK Ltd	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	0.54	0.54	1.1
9.	Pyrostop 30-10 Pilkington UK Ltd	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1 ocessine	0.54	0.54	1.1
10	Pyrobel 16 · AGC Flat Glass UK⁵	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	1.1	ation for assent statuts	5 <sup>8.</sup> 0.54	0.54	1.1
No	Note:										

## Note:

All glass types must be fitted fully in accordance with the manufacturers' tested defails/installation requirements, particularly with respect to edge cover and expansion tolerances. 1.

WC

Glazing system 7 and 10 may only be used with glass types 3 - 10. 2.

Field of Application for: Falcon Panel Products Ltd Stredor® **54** Doorsets Report No: WF377027 Revision A Page 70 of 116

- 3. Sectional drawings detailing the tested and approved proprietary glazing systems are contained in section 6.3.6.
- 4. See section 6.2.1 below for further size limitations relating to Pyroshield 2.
- 5. Glass type 10 is fully insulating for 60 minutes in terms of the criteria set out in BS 476: Part 20: 1987.



#### 6.2.1 **Pyroshield 2: Size Limitation**

The following table details the maximum pane sizes and approved glazing systems permitted for Pyroshield 2.

Size Limitation & Glazing System for Pyroshield 2					
Glass Type	Glazing System	Glazing System Maximum Pane Size			
	(see section 6.2)	(mm)	(m²)		
Durachield 2	1	1300 (h) x 550 (w)	0.715		
Pyrosnield 2	4	1300 x 310	0.4		

### Note:

The heights and widths listed are the maximum single dimensions allowable for an individual pane utilising the relevant glazing system; maximum dimensions may not be increased even if the other dimension for the pane is reduced.

#### 6.3 **Glazing Beads & Installation Detail**

#### 6.3.1 **Chamfered Beads**

Chamfered bead must be as specified below:

Chamfered Bead Specification					
Material	Application	Minimum Section Size (mm)	Minimum Density (kg/m <sup>3</sup> )		
Hardwood: Glazing beads must be straight grained joinery quality hardwood timber, free from knots, splits and checks. The use of Beech (Fagus sylvatica) is NOT	Permitted for use with all glass types and glazing systems as specified in the table in section 6.2.	See diagrams in section 6.3.6 for minimum bead dimension for each permitted glass type and glazing system.	≥ 640		
6.3.2 Square Beads Square bead must be as sp	pecified below:	Aparty certification	Panel Product		

#### 6.3.2 **Square Beads**

-			0° 0° 0.
6.3.2 Square Beads	specified below:	arty neof the	Panel Pic and purpose nive
Oquare beau must be as a		2.9 21 200	WINE AND AND
	Square Bead Specifi	cation to thing internet of any	thin is from produce site
Material	Application	Minimum Section Size	Minimum
		140 13tion (mm), real iden	Density
		install agins of the pset	(kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
Hardwood:	Permitted for use with	See diagram belows	≥ 640
	glass types 3-10 and	ne ne ed tail of o	



Glazing beads must be straight grained joinery quality hardwood timber, free from knots, splits and checks.	glazing systems 1 and 2 as specified in the table in section 6.2.	
The use of Beech ( <i>Fagus</i> sylvatica) is NOT permitted.		

The minimum permitted dimensions of the bead is as shown in the diagram below.



#### 6.3.3 **False Beads**

False timber beads are intended to fall away from the glass under fully developed fire conditions so cannot cause a problem on the fire side and are used in conjunction with partially insulating glasses so that the bead on the unexposed face will not get hot enough to cause non-pilot ignition, but is more likely to fall away from the glass.

False timber beads of similar density and species as the glazing beads may be bonded to the glass face with an intumescent mastic/silicon, or a 0.5 - 2mm thick self-adhesive intumescent tape/strip of the types shown below. Mechanical fixing of the false beads to the leaf framing is not permitted. Suitable glass for this application is restricted to types 3-10 in section 6.2

	Suitable Self-Adhesive Intumescent Tape						
Glazing System		Manufacturer	Minimum Size				
			C (mm) one that all terrain				
1.	Therm-A-Strip 30	Intumescent Seals Ltd.	10 wide x 0.5 - 3 thick.				
2.	Fireglaze 30	Sealmaster Ltd.	the thing internet of ensuiting the produce of the				
3.	Firestrip 30	Hodgsons Sealants Ltd.	nance propriet cest enderinge out the				
4.	Envirograf Product 77 – G10/10	Intumescent Seals Ltd.	nains the the evil a state of the found be				
Not	e:	Falcon Panel Handracument in the document in the short of	worringtonfire				

Note:
Hereine coverine and found where the found of the out of the found of

Preformed strip systems 1 - 4 may be self-adhesive and grooved into the rear of the glazing bars.

### 6.3.4 **Bead Fixings**

Glazing beads must be retained in position with 60mm long steel pins meeting the specification in section 6.3.4.1 below; or 60mm long No. 6 - 8 screws, inserted at 35 - 40° to the vertical at no more than 50mm from each corner and at 150mm maximum centres.

Pneumatically fired pins are acceptable providing the pins meet the specification given below.

### 6.3.4.1 **Gun (Pneumatically) Fired Pins**

The following pin specification is permitted and has been considered suitable for gun (pneumatically) fired applications:

### Option 1: Round, Oval & Rectangular Pins

The following dimension of pin has been approved for round, oval and rectangular shaped pins:

- Minimum Standard Wire Gauge (SWG) 16. •
- Minimum cross section area of 2.03mm<sup>2</sup>.
- Minimum linear dimension of 1.6mm in any direction.



Figure 6.2 – Round, Oval & Rectangular pin detail – minimum dimension 1.6mm

### **Option 2: Rectangular Pins**

This document remains the property of takence within is the or purpose. This the responsibility of the reader to ensure that the responsibility of the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure that the the reader to ensure that the the reader to ensure that the the reader to ensure the the the test of the reader to ensure the the test of test of the test of the test of the test of test of test of the test of test of the test of tes The following dimension of rectangular pin has been deemed suitable for gun (pneumatically) Panel Produces Indealation and maintenance of fire door a fired applications, providing the 1.6mm dimension is predominately oriented perpendicular to Falcon Panel Products Ltd supports third party cartification of the supports third party cartification and maintenance of the support of the super support of the su This document details a subset of avide range of products. the glass, where possible:

- Minimum Standard Wire Gauge (SWG) 16.
- Minimum cross section area of 2.24mm<sup>2</sup>. •
- Minimum linear dimension of 1.4mm. .



## Figure 6.3 – Rectangular pin detail – minimum dimension 1.4mm

### Note:

Pins with dimensions less than those stated above are not covered by this Field of Application.

#### 6.3.5 **Glazing Liner**

A 6-10mm thick square aperture liner is permitted for use with all glazing beads, providing it is constructed from hardwood of minimum density 640kg/m<sup>3</sup> and glued in position using a UF, PVA or PU type adhesive.

### 6.3.6 **Installation Detail**

The fitting of the glazing seal between the bead and the glass should generally be in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions with a tight fit present between the substrates.

All glass types must be fitted fully in accordance with the manufacturers' tested details/installation requirements, particularly with respect to edge cover and expansion tolerances.

The following diagrams shows the installation detail with minimum bead size for each permitted glazing system and glass type.

#### 6.3.6.1 ISL Therm A Glaze 60: Installation Detail



Figure 6.4 – ISL Therm-A-Glaze 60 installation ASS Falcon Panel Products Lideur detail

# Key:

- (1) Stredor® 54 leaf
- 60mm pins or screws (2)
- 2mm x 54mm ISL Therm-A-Line (3) intumescent liner.
- beading (4) Hardwood measuring 30mm high with width to suit glass type, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return and a 20% s Lion , fitted & Lion , atumescent strip the glass and beads , o) Assessed glass , o) Assessed glass , of the fitted for the fitted of the chamfer, fitted around the glazing
  - ... 25 x 4mm Therm-A-Bead intumescent strip fitted between the glass and beads on both for Assessed alt Receive covering a wide range of products, ite 2 ne reame covering a wide range of products, ite 2 ne reame covering a wide range of products ite 2 ra intumescent strip filted between the glass and beads on both faces. Assessed glass This document details a subset of evidence interant ne responsibility of the the evidence wi

### 6.3.6.2 Sealmaster Fireglaze Mastic: Installation Detail



Figure 6.5 – Sealmaster Fireglaze Mastic installation detail

### Key:

- (1) Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2)60mm pins or screws
- 2mm x 54mm Sealmaster G60 (3)intumescent liner.
- (4) Hardwood beading measuring 30mm high with width to suit glass type, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return and a 20° chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces.
- (5) Fire Glaze 30 mastic fitted between the glass and beads on both faces.
- (6) Assessed glass

Falcon Parel Produces in solitation and maintenance of free door assemblies.

antifecture installation and maintenance or the ensure that that any products it do the property of easing that that any products it do the property of easing that that any products it do the property of the reader to ensure that that any products it do the reader to ensure the reader to ensure that that the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure the reader to ensure the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure the reader to This document renains the property of Falcon Parel Products Ind.

This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

cunent details a subset of evidence from an extensive evidence for an end of products ite at a subset of evidence of evidence of evidence of the evidence of e

### 6.3.6.3 **Lorient System 36 Plus: Installation Detail**

Permitted for 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets only



Figure 6.6 – Lorient System-36 Plus installation detail

## Key:

- (1)Stredor® 54 leaf
- 60mm pins or screws (2)
- (3) Hardwood beading measuring 21mm high with width to suit glass type, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return and a 10 - 15° chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces.
- (4) Lorient System-36 Plus intumescent U-Channel gasket fitted around the glass, between the glass and beading and glass and aperture.
- Assessed glass (5)

### 6.3.6.4 **Lorient System 90 Plus: Installation Detail**



Figure 6.7 – Lorient System-90 Plus installation detail

### Key:

- (1)Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2)60mm pins or screws
- 2mm x 54mm Lorient B25402 (3) intumescent liner
- (4)Hardwood beading measuring 27mm high x 19mm wide, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return, a 10mm x 2mm internal cut out and a 45° chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces
- Lorient System-90 Plus (5) Historenander und using the evidence within strengtherenander under the reader of the intumescent U-Channel gasket A Panel Products Itd supports third party certification and maintenance of the door installation and maintenance of the and the product of th This document legime route of evidence of products.

The regime coverine and condition of the coverine and coverine and coverine and coverine and coverine coverine

Falcon Panel Produces Ltd supports third party cert

### 6.3.6.5 Mann McGowan Pyroglaze 60: Installation Detail



Figure 6.8 – Mann McGowan Pyroglaze 60 installation detail

### Key:

- (1) Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2)60mm pins or screws
- (3)2mm x 54mm Mann MacGowan 300 Pvroglaze intumescent liner
- (4) Hardwood beading measuring 30mm high with width to suit glass type, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return and a 20° chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces.
- (5) Mann McGowan 25 x 3mm Pyroglaze 60 500P or 500 PSA intumescent strip fitted between the glass and beads on both faces.
- (6) Assessed glass

### 6.3.6.6 Lorient System 63Ø – for circular glazing: Installation Detail

Permitted for 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets only



Figure 6.9 – Lorient System-63Ø – for circular glazing installation detail

### Key:

- (1) Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2) 60mm pins or screws
- 2mm x 54mm Lorient B25402 (3)intumescent liner
- (4) Hardwood beading measuring 30mm high x 25mm wide, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return, a 5mm x 5mm internal cut out and a 45% chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces.
- (5) Lorient System-63Ø fitted around the glass, between the glass and beading and glass and aperture heresponsibility of the reader to ensure that that a phylocoly Individe the reside covering a wide range of products. This document remains the property of Falcon Pane that the property of Falcon Pane that the for pane the reader of the result in the second pane within is the for pane the evidence within it is the evidence anuacure, instance, the property of the reader to ensure that the property of the the trader to ensure that the the reader to ensure that the the test of the reader to ensure that the the test of test of the test of te ingreeine covering avide range of products, ie at
- Panel Produces to support and maintenant Falcon Panel Products Ld Supports third panel

### 6.3.6.7 Sealed Tight Solutions STS105GT3 / STS302GL: Installation Detail



Figure 6.10 – Sealed Tight Solutions STS105GT3 / STS302 installation detail

## Key:

- (1) Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2)60mm pins or screws
- 2mm x 30mm Sealed Tight (3) Solutions STS 302 intumescent liner
- (4) Hardwood beading measuring 32mm high with width to suit glass type, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return and a 17° chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces.
- (5) Sealed Tight Solutions 10 x 3mm STS 105GT-3 glazing tape fitted between the glass and beads on both faces.
- Assessed glass (6)

# 6.3.6.8 ISL 60 Plus: Installation Detail



Figure 6.11 – ISL 60 Plus installation detail

# Key:

- (1)Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2)60mm screws
- 2mm x 54mm ISL Therm-A-Line (3) intumescent liner
- (4) Hardwood beading measuring 30mm high with width to suit glass type, including a minimum 5mm x 5mm bolection return and a 16° chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces.
- ISL 25 x 5.8mm (compressed to (5) anutacture installation and maintenance of the reader to ensure that that any products products of the reader to ensure that that any products of the reader to ensure that that any products of the reader to ensure that the tenance of tenance of tenance of tenance of the tenance of tenance This the name of the evidence within stream products the property of Falcon Panel Products Indianose. 4mm in fitting) ISL60 Plus Panel Produces It d supports third participance of the door as son be son be so the so the

The regime covering a wide range of products ite at a side ran

Individe the reside covering a wide range of products.

### 6.3.6.9 Sealmaster Fireglaze: Installation Detail



Figure 6.12 – Sealmaster Fireglaze installation detail

## Key:

- (1)Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2)60mm screws
- 2.5mm x 54mm Sealmaster (3)Fireglaze tape as intumescent liner
- (4) Hardwood beading measuring 32mm high with width to suit including alass type, а minimum 5mm х 5mm bolection return and a 16° chamfer, fitted around the glazing apertures on both faces.
- ISL 25 x 2.5mm Sealmaster (5) Fireglaze tape fitted between the glass and beads on both faces.
- Assessed glass (6)

### 6.3.6.10 Sealed Tight Solutions STS104SG / ST302GL: Installation Detail



Figure 6.13 - STS104SG/ST302GL installation detail

# Key:

- (1) Stredor® 54 leaf
- (2) 60mm pins or screws
- (3) 2mm x 30mm Sealed Tight Solutions STS 302 intumescent liner
- , peak in 30n is suit glas ig a minimun i bolection return i (4) Hardwood beading
- iamt, jiazing a, ces. Tight Solutions STS (including C x4) 104SG glazing itted between the glass a beads on both faces. (6) Assessed glass 14x4) 104SG glazing tape fitted between the glass and beads on between the glass and beads on between the glass and beads on beat Individe Concerne covering a wide range of products. The residence of products is at a subject of products is at a subject of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of products is a subject of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of product of products is a subject of product of
- Falcon Panel Products the supports third on the support of the superior of the

### **Door Frame Construction** 7

### 7.1 **Frame Specification**

Based on tested construction, the door frames must comply with the following specification:

Frame Specification			
Frame	Material	Minimum Section Size (mm)	Minimum Density (kg/m <sup>3</sup> )
1	Hardwood: All door frame timber must meet or exceed class J30 as specified in BS EN 942: 2007 (subject to adequate repair of any defects). The use of Beech ( <i>Fagus</i> <i>sylvatica</i> ) is NOT permitted.	Frame: 70 x 29 (excluding stop) Stop: 13 x 15 (integral or planted on) Frame: 70 x 32 (excluding stop) Stop: 13 x 12 (integral or planted on) Frame: 70 x 32 (at narrowest point)	640

### Note:

Minimum section size is subject to size of hardware and the use of transomed overpanel (see frame details below).

#### 7.2 **Standard Frame**

The diagram below shows detail of the standard frame construction. Minimum section is determined based on hardware requirements and whether a transomed overpanel is part of the doorset design.



(A) Frame depth = 70mm minimum

- (B) Frame thickness = 29mm minimum
- (C) Stop thickness = 15mm minimum

ader to ensure that any product that any product of the ensure Minimum section size when using a transomed (C) Stop thickness = 12mm minimum acure the fit of the state that the fit of the state that the state that the state the state that the state that the state the state the state that the state the



Figure 7.2 – Scalloped frame detail

### 7.4 **Square Frame**

The diagram below shows detail of the square frame construction. Where utilising square frames for double acting doorsets, the maximum radius to the corners of the leaf is 8mm.



- (A) Frame depth = 70mm minimum
- (B) Frame thickness = 32mm minimum

(A) Frame depth = 70mm minimum

2mm edge profiling

(B) Frame thickness = 32mm minimum (R) Radius from floor spring or pivot = 8mm maximum to create a maximum

Radius to corner of leaf = maximum 8mm to create a maximum 2mm edge profiling

Figure 7.3 – Square frame detail

### **Frame Joints** 7.5

Frame joints may be mortice and tenoned, mitred, half lapped or butted and with no gaps (see diagram below).

Pare Products the supports third party certification for the assertion of the supports third party certification for the support of the suppo anuacure, maaiaconains the property of the reader to ensure that that any products the reader to ensure that the reader to ensure the to ensure the the reader to ensure the the to ensure the the to ensure the the to ensure the toe ensure the to ensure the to Falcon Panel Produces installation and maintenance of the door a All jointing methods require mechanical fixing with the appropriate size ring shank nails or screws.





### **Overpanels & Fanlights** 8

### 8.1 **Transomed Overpanels**

Overpanels of the same construction as the door leaves may be used, only when separated by a transom, and must comply with the following:

Overpanel:

- must be fully contained within the door frame (see diagram below).
- gap between the edges of overpanel and frame reveal should be a tight fit.

Transom:

- must be to the same material specification as the door frame construction. Frame and transom must have a minimum section size of 70 x 44mm plus a 12mm stop.
- joint must be either: mortice and tenon or butt joint (see section 7.5). Joints must be tight, with no gaps, and requires mechanical fixing with the appropriate size ring shank nails or screws. Butt joints must be additionally bonded with urea formaldehyde.

### 8.1.1 **Overpanel Fixing**

Overpanels must be fixed as follows:

Screwing through the rear of the frame with steel screws passing at least 30mm into the centreline of the overpanel. Fixings must be no more than 100mm from each corner and a maximum of 250mm centres in between

### 8.1.2 **Overpanel Fire Sealing**

The jamb intumescent seals as specified in section 4.5 must also be fitted to all concealed edges of the overpanel. The intumescent seals may be fitted in the overpanel edges or alternatively in the frame reveal (see diagram below).

### 8.1.3 **Overpanel Sizing**

The maximum assessed overpanel dimensions are given in the table below, subject to the restrictions above.

Maximum Overpanel Dimension				
Configuration	Maximum Overpanel Height	Width of the senten with		
	(mm)	(mm) of or as duc state		
Single Leaf doorsets	2000	Overall door width		
Double Leaf doorsets	1500	Overall door width		
	Falcon Panel Products Itd sufferents	poorts to main perty opensitivity in the second open web		

Reference Covering and erange of products, ite



Figure 8.1 – Transomed overpanel detail

### 8.2 **Fanlights**

Glazing may be used in lieu of an overpanel, only when separated by a transom, and must comply with the following:

Transom:

must be to the same material specification as the door frame construction. Frame and transom must have minimum section size of 70 x 44mm plus a 12mm stop.

Glass and Glazing system:

glasses 5-10 in section 6.2 and glazing system 1 and 2 in section 6.2 are permitted. •

Glazing Bead:

and that any product must be hardwood with minimum density of 640 kg/m<sup>3</sup>. Beech hardwood (Fagus

<ul> <li>must be hardwood w sylvatica) is NOT pern</li> </ul>	itted.	or a succession of the second
8.2.1 Fanlight Sizing	ertificate of	nel Proc any Pose. Sive
The maximum assessed fanlig	nt dimensions are given in the table below:	la the by stell
Ν	laximum Fanlight Dimensions	in is the on solution at
Configuration	Height	nence fill of pill wet
	(mm)	evide range on optimi
Single & Double Leaf doorsets	$\leq 600$ $10^{10}$ $10^{10}$ $10^{10}$ $10^{10}$ $10^{10}$ $10^{10}$ $10^{10}$ $10^{10}$	idthe could be
	Falcon Panel Hacturent responsible dut details cover of the source of th	nfire be part of @ element

The diagram below shows a detailed illustration of the fanlight.



Figure 8.2 - Fanlight detail



### Intumescent 9

### **Essential Hardware Protection** 9.1

The intumescent seals for hardware protection tested and assessed for this doorset design are as follows:

Hardware Intumescent Specification			
Application	Location	Product & Manufacturer	
Hinges	Under hinge blades	1mm thick STS graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd 2mm thick Therm-A-Flex – Intumescent Seals Ltd 2mm thick Pyroplex graphite – Pyroplex Ltd 2mm thick Interdens 2mm thick MAP – Lorient Polyproducts Ltd	
Top pivots, bottom straps	Lining all sides of strap mortices:	2mm thick Interdens 2mm thick MAP – Lorient Polyproducts Ltd	
Locks/Latches	Under forend & keep, & encasing lock/latch body	<ul> <li>1–2mm thick STS graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd</li> <li>2mm thick Therm-A-Flex – Intumescent Seals Ltd</li> <li>2mm thick Pyroplex graphite – Pyroplex Ltd</li> <li>2mm thick Interdens</li> <li>2mm thick MAP – Lorient Polyproducts Ltd</li> </ul>	
Hook boxes	Encasing hook box body	1mm thick STS graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	
Electric motor	Encasing body	1mm thick STS graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	
Flush bolts	Under flush bolt keep & lining flush bolt rebate in leaf	2mm thick Pyroplex graphite – Pyroplex Ltd 1mm thick STS graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd 2mm thick Interdens 2mm thick MAP – Lorient Polyproducts Ltd	
Cableway	Lining whole of cableway	1mm thick graphite - Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd	
Cable loop	Under forend, Lining base of cable loop, & encasing	ST302 2mm thick graphite - Sealed Tight Solutions Etd 100	

orine cument ire

Concealed closer	Lining closer rebate	2mm thick manufacturer supplied graphite kit – Rutland UK
Eye viewer	Around diameter of hole	1mm thick graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd
Lattor plata	Lining outer edges	2mm thick graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd
	Lining inner edges	1mm thick graphite – Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd

# 9.2 Door Perimeter Intumescent Seal

Tested and permitted intumescent seal is as specified in section 4.5 for all permitted door configurations.

The Intumescent seals may be provided with or without pile or elastomeric fins in order to provide additional performance i.e. smoke or acoustic control. Seals may be installed with the additional features, it is beyond the remit of this assessment to discuss likely acoustic or cold smoke control performance.

Other variations of the tested intumescent seals are available and are considered acceptable (see diagram below).



# **10** Adhesives

Based on the tested doorsets and leaf construction, the following adhesives must be used.

Adhesive Specification				
	Elem	ent	Product	
		Inner to Outer	Confidential – details held in draft version of report	
Leaf 1	Core	Outer	Confidential – details held in draft version of report	
		(lamels)	Confidential – details held in draft version of report	
	Core	Inner to Outer	Confidential – details held in draft version of report	
Leaf 2		Outer (lamels)	Confidential – details held in draft version of report	
Facing			Melamine urea formaldehyde	
Lippings				
Glazing liner			Polyurethane/PUR Cold/UF	
Decorative facings			PVA/PU/UF/Contact Adhesive	
Frame joints			PVA/PU/UF	



### 11 Hardware

### 11.1 General

The following section details the permitted scope and constraints for fitting hardware to this door design. The following items of hardware must also bear the CE Mark:

- 1. Locks & Latches: Test Standard EN 12209
- 2. Single axis hinges: Test Standard EN 1935
- 3. Controlled door closing devices: Test Standard EN 1154
- 4. Electrically powered hold-open devices: Test Standard EN 1155
- 5. Door co-ordinators: Test Standard EN 1158
- 6. Emergency exit hardware: Test Standard EN 179
- 7. Panic exit hardware: Test Standard EN 1125.

The following sections consider what alternative items of essential hardware can be used on these doorsets.

Each item of hardware is considered in each section giving the items of hardware which:

- 1. Have been tested
- 2. Can be used as a result of an assessment of the appropriateness of the item of hardware, based on test evidence not commissioned by Falcon Panel Products
- 3. Can be used as a result of the CERTIFIRE approval of the item of hardware
- 4. Can be used based on the generic guidance or CE marking but final approval will be with another approving body.

Each section will consider the named item of hardware and detail if there are any limitations associated with:

- 1. Leaf size
- 2. Configuration

tification for the process 3. Intumescent seals
4. Intumescent protection
5. Frame

No item of hardware at the hanging stile and head should be within 200mm of another item of hardware unless there is successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes there is a successful text evidence with the items installed closes the successful text evidence with the items installed closes the successful text evidence with the items installed closes the successful text evidence with the items installed closes the successful text evidence with the items installed closes the successful text evidence with the items installed closes the successful text evidence with the items installed closes the successful text evidence with This downer the regime covering a wide range of products. This document remains the property of Falc This document remains the property of Factors within the property of the providence within the property of the paid and neresponsibility of the reader to ensure in this fit Hereine coverine and found wild on the coverine and found wild Hanel Hooucs Lo supports unit interes hardware unless there is successful test evidence with the items installed closer together.

Facon Panel Products transminister of

### 11.2 **Essential Hardware**

The table of essential hardware is given for each doorset configuration, as a baseline for the doorset described. Changes to hardware can affect the intumescent specification and frame details which are considered in section 4.5, section 7 and section 9.1.

The following table details the essential hardware for each permitted door leaf configuration.

Essential Hardware		
Configuration	Hardware	
LSASD	<ul> <li>Latch</li> <li>Hinges</li> <li>Overhead face fixed closer</li> </ul>	
ULSASD	<ul><li>Hinges</li><li>Overhead face fixed closer</li></ul>	
DASD	<ul><li>Top pivot / bottom strap</li><li>Floor spring</li></ul>	
LSADD	<ul> <li>Latch</li> <li>Hinges</li> <li>Overhead face fixed closer</li> <li>Flush bolt</li> <li>Selector if rebated meeting stile present</li> </ul>	
ULSADD	<ul> <li>Hinges</li> <li>Overhead face fixed closer</li> <li>Flush bolt</li> <li>Selector if rebated meeting stile present</li> </ul>	
DADD	<ul> <li>Top pivot / bottom strap</li> <li>Floor spring</li> </ul>	

### 11.3 Locks & Latches

The different types of locking and latching devices are considered in the following section,

The following single point locks and latches have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design. product ourner

Те	ested Lock & Latch Specification
Product Reference	Manufacturer
(Test Reference)	/Supplier 20 20 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
Ref. 376113	Altro Eurospec

his in



tubular steel mortice latch		Keep: 65 x 40
(WF407334)		Case: 61 x 24 x 17
Ref. Not given in test report Electr brass tubular steel mortice latch (BMT/FEP/F16174)	Smith & Locke	Forend: 60 x 32 Keep: 60 x 22
Ref. Not given in test report mortice latch (WF374929B)	Zoo Hardware	Forend: 130 x 22 (case is bigger than forend according to test report) Keep: 180 x 25 Case: 165 x 87 x 14
Ref. Not given in test report Steel mortice latch (WF 392155)	Arrone	Forend: 235 x 20 Keep: 170 x 24
Ref. 12781 Tubular steel mortice latch (WF369336)	Not given in test report	Forend: 60 x 27 Keep: 60 x 22

These locks and latches are permitted for use in:

Leaf 1 + Frame 1 doorsets

Leaf 2 + Frame 1 doorsets

Configuration: LSASD and LSADD

### **Alternative Single Point Locks & Latches**

Locks and latches must either be as tested, or alternatively components with the following specification are acceptable.

Alternative Lock & Latch Specification			
Element	Specification	»*	
Maximum forend & keep dimensions	For Single doorsets:	tid. Ct.	
	235 (h) x 22 (w) x 4mm (t)	rodu	
	For Double doorsets:	505e. ve	
	235 (h) x 22 (w) x 4mm (t)	tensi.	
Maximum body dimensions	180 (h) x 100 (w) x 18mm (t) and the second	anducts.	
Intumescent protection	See section 9	Proz Nebs	
Materials	All parts essential to the locking/latching action (including the latch bolt, forend & keep) to be steel or brass (with a melting point ≥800°C)	not inte	
Location	Between 750 – 1200mm from the threshold		
Falcon Pranuto Socure Policiture Take of the Contraction of the social state of the so			

Ine regime ring Certifire approved locks for 60 minutes for ITT classification as long as all of the requirements are complied with are approved.

### Multi Point Locks & Latches: Leaf 1 Only 11.3.2

For multipoint locks, the tested ERA Surefire Classic multipoint latch may be utilised with Stredor® 54 door designs.

The installed latch must be protected with the tested intumescent protection detailed. It is preferable the latch be kept locked at all 3 locking points when not in active use.

The following locks and latches have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Tested Lock & Latch Specification			
Product Reference (Test Reference)	Manufacturer /Supplier	Dimensions (mm)	
SureFire Classic 3 point auto locking latch (CFR1812191_1)	ERA	Forend: 1635 (h) x 20 (w) Centre Lock/Latch Body: 214 (h) x 58 (w) x 14 (d) Centre Keep: 189 (h) x 38 (w) x 2 (t) (including tongue of $68 \times 14$ ) Hook Box Body: 150 (h) x 40 (w) x 15 (d) Hook Keep: 152 (h) x 38 (d) x 2 (t) (including tongue of $47 \times 14$ )	
SureFire Classic 2 Hook with ERA auto fire electric motor box (WF391032A)	ERA <sup>1</sup>	Forend: 1635 (h) x 20 (w) Top & Bottom Keep: 150 (h) x 24 (w) Centre Keep: 190 (h) x 24 (w) Electric Motor Body: 200 x 48	

These locks and latches are permitted for use in:

Leaf 1 + Frame 1 doorsets

Configuration: LSASD

### Note:

itation for the proc door assembly ERA auto fire electric motor box is permitted for use in 30 minutes fire resisting 1. doorset only Surethat

#### 11.4 **Hinges**

The following hinges have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Tested Hinge Specification		
Product Reference	Manufacturer	
(Test Reference)	/Supplier Lature nent shill usin (mm) ver nent of other	

HIN1433/13 Bearing butt type hinge (WF374929B)	Eurospec Enduro	Blade: 101 x 30
H101 Lift off type steel hinge (WF392155) (WF391032A)	Royde & Tucker	Blade: 100 x 35
H102 Bearing butt type hinge	Royde & Tucker	Blade: 100 x 35
Ref. 2990G Bearing butt type hinges (WF369636)	Smith & Locke	Blade: 102 x 30
ZHSS43RP Bearing butt type hinge (CFR1812191_1)	Zoo Hardware	Blade: 102 x 31
H2N1103/13/R Bearing butt type hinge (WF407334)	Eurospec EnduroMax	Blade: 100 x 31
Ref. Not given in test report Bearing butt type hinge SL Class 13 (BMT/FEP/F16174)	Smith & Locke	Blade: 100 x 30

These hinges are permitted for use in:

Leaf 1 + Frame 1 doorsets

Leaf 2 + Frame 1 doorsets

Acationforthe Configuration LSASD, ULSASD, LSADD and ULSADD
Alternative Hinges
Hinges must either be as tested, or alternatively components with the following specification to below are acceptable.

The door leaves must be hung on a minimum of 3 hinges. Leaves over 2400mm high must fit 4 hinges. Hinges with the following specification are acceptable products

The door leaves must be hung on a minimum of 3 hinges. Leaves over 2400mm high must fit 4 hinges. Hinges with the following specification are acceptable			
Alternative Hinge Specification			
Element	Specification E evice to nide ound de		
Blade height	90 - 120mm produce instruction and ine the acute of the and the second		
Blade width (excluding knuckle)	30 - 35mm is at une or il red to etaile coverion and		



Blade thickness	3	2.5 – 4mm	
Fixings		Minimum of 4No. 30 long No. 8 or No. 10 steel woo screws per blade	
Materials		Steel or stainless steel or brass (melting point ≥800°C)	
		Тор	120 – 200mm from head of leaf to top of hinge
Leaf height: <2400mm	2 <sup>nd</sup>	Minimum 200mm from top hinge OR equally spaced between top & bottom hinges	
	<2400mm	Bottom	150 – 300mm from foot of leaf to bottom of hinge
positions		Тор	120 – 200mm from head of leaf to top of hinge
Leaf heig >2400mr	Leaf height:	2 <sup>nd</sup> & 3 <sup>rd</sup>	Minimum 200mm from top hinge to equispaced between top & bottom hinges
	22400mm	Bottom	150 – 300mm from foot of leaf to bottom of hinge
Intumescent pro	otection	See section 9	

Certifire approved hinges for 60 minutes for ITT classification as long as all of the requirements are complied with are approved.

# 11.5 Automatic Closing

The different types of automatic closing devices are considered in the following section.

# 11.5.1 Overhead Face Fixed Closers: Single Acting

The following overhead face fixed closers have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Tested Overhead Faced Fixed Closer Specification		
Product Reference	Manufacturer	Dimensions Cores
(Test Reference)	/Supplier	(mm) the maile to
AR1500 (WF374929B) (BMT/FEP/F16174)	Arrone	Footprint: 245 x 45 of $r_{ro}^{huc}$ $r_{ro}^{huc$
AR3500 (WF407334)	Arrone	Footprint: 247 x 60 this fit to a for the states
TS9205 Size 2-5 (CFR1812191_1)	Rutland	Footprint: 269 x 69 evide control soothing
R-11352 Size 3 Cam action slide arm	Rutland <sup>1</sup> Productinse inset	Footprint: 257 x 60

nio this there hand

## (WF392155)

These overhead face fixed closers are permitted for use in:

Leaf 1 and Frame 1 doorsets

Leaf 2 and Frame 1 doorsets

Configuration: LSASD, ULSASD, LSADD and ULSADD

## Note:

1. R-11352 Size 3 is permitted for use in 30 minutes fire resisting doorset only

## Alternative Overhead Face Fixed Closers: Single Acting

Certifire approved Overhead face fixed closers for 60 minutes for ITT classification as long as all of the requirements are complied with are approved.

### 11.5.2 **Concealed Closer: Leaf 1 Only**

The following concealed closer have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Permitted for use in 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets only

Tested Concealed Closer Specification			
Product Reference (Test Reference)	Manufacturer /Supplier	Dimensions (mm)	
ITS11204 (WF 414781)	Rutland	Body: 243mm(l) x 52mm(d) x 32mm(w)	

This concealed closer is permitted for use in:

Leaf 1 and Frame 1 doorsets

Configuration: LSASD, ULSASD, LSADD, ULSADD

### Floor Spring & Pivot: Double Acting 11.5.3

The following floor springs have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Tested Floor Spring Specification			
Product Reference	Manufacturer	Dimensions of the other of the	
(Test Reference)	/Supplier	ce (mm) e are na and re	
TS7104 Floor spring (WF412601)	Rutland	Body: 274 (I) x 50 (h) x 81 (w) Cover: 290 (I) x 102 (w) x 1.5 (t)	
	Falcon Panel Products It da last Falcon Panel Products It da last This document response	A CONTRACT OF THE PERIODE OF A CONTRACT OF A CONTRACT OF THE PERIODE OF A CONTRACT OF	



The following pivot have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Tested Pivot Specification			
Product Reference	Manufacturer	Dimensions	
(Test Reference)	/Supplier	(mm)	
Pivot Kit: PS.190	Rutland	Top Strap Pivot:	
Strap		175 (w) x 30 (d) x 28.5 (h)	
(WF412601)		(with a Ø15mm retractable pivot)	
		Top Strap:	
		124.5 (w) x 30 (d) x 15.5 (t)	
		Bottom Strap:	
		235 (w) x 24 (d) x 19.5 (t)	

These Floor Springs and Pivots are permitted for use in:

Leaf 1 and Frame 1 doorsets

Leaf 2 and Frame 1 doorsets

Configuration: DASD and DADD

## **Alternative Floor Spring & Pivot: Double Acting**

Certifire approved Top pivot, bottom strap and floor spring for 60 minutes for ITT classification as long as all of the requirements are complied with are approved.

### 11.6 **Flush Bolts**

Flush bolts may be incorporated centrally into the top and bottom of one meeting edge, providing the following maximum dimensions are not exceeded

- 210mm long x 22mm deep x 22mm wide, and
- Flush bolts must be steel or brass with melting point in excess of 800C for 60 minutes. fire resisting doorsets. The mortice must be as tight to the mechanism as is compatible with its operation.
- All edges of the mortices in the frame and leaf must be protected with intumescent gaskets as specified in section 9.1.
- Intumescent strips in door leaf edge must be located opposite the flush bolt so that

Cument details a subset of evidence from an extent Alternatively the hardware manufacturers tested gaskets may be used. See diagram below for example of intumescent protection to flush bolt: This document remains the property of Falcone neresponsibility of the reader to ensure that this of the reader to ensure this of the reader to ensure this of the evidence within is the the evidence within it i n Panel Products it d supports third panel Products it d supports third painter and interant ent details a subset of evidence trom an extern ine regime on the range of products. This document renains the property of Falcourer in the property of the propert Falcon Panel Produces the supports this





Figure 11.1 – Flush bolt intumescent protection example

The following flush bolts (shoot bolts) have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Tested Flush Bolt Specification			
Product Reference (Test Reference)	Manufacturer /Supplier	Dimensions (mm)	
Ref. 5020J Slide action flush bolt (WF369636) (BMT/FEP/F16174)	Smith & Locke	Footprint: 100 x 22 Keep: 40 x 22	
ZA503 Lever action flush bolt (WF374929B)	Zoo Hardware	Body: 205 x 22 x 40 Keep: 42 x 15	
Ref. 746895 (WF407334)	Smith & Locke	Footprint: 101 x 16	

### 11.7 **Additional Items of Hardware**

### 11.7.1 Handles / Operating Furniture

fication for th , door assem Handles may be surface-fixed or bolted through the door leaf, providing they are steel or brass with melting point in excess of 800C for 60 minutes fire resisting doorsets. The length is limited to 1200mm between the fixing points. If through-fixed, there must be no more than 1mm ourmebsite

The following handles have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 of we design.

Tested Handle Specification		
Product Reference (Test Reference)	Manufacturer /Supplier	
	Falcon manu do cu respiratur de me tatunite	



	1	
Ref. 1A000 Balmoral inline lever type handle (WF391032A)	Fab & Fix <sup>1</sup>	240 x 30
Ref. 625900 Mitre lever handle on rose (WF407334)	Not given in test report	Rose: Ø52
Ref. 2812H Lever on rose type handle (WF369636) (BMT/FEP/F16174)	Smith & Locke	Rose: Ø50
Ref. Not given in test report Union steel lever on rose type handle (WF374929B)	Union	Rose: Ø52
ZPS Steel lever handle on rose with escutcheon (CFR1812191_1)	Zoo Hardware	Handle: Ø19 x 130 Rose: Ø48 x 7 Escutcheon: Ø51 x 4 (stop face) Ø51 x 8 (hinge knuckle face)
Ref. Not given in test report Steel lever type handle (WF392155)	Arrone <sup>1</sup>	Rose: Ø53
Ref. Not given in test report Steel lever type handle (WF374929B)	Zoo Hardware	Rose: Ø52
Ref. 625900 Mitre lever handle in rose (WF407334)	Not given in test report	Rose: Ø52

### Note:

Face-fixed hardware such as push plates and kick plates may be fitted to the doorsets provided that their fitting requires the removal of <u>no</u> part of the door leaf. Push plates and kick plates must be steel or brass with melting point in excess of 8000 for each doorsets. These items of hardware are pormit area if mechanically fixed and a maximum of 30% if bonded with a thermo-softening contact adhesive. Plates must not return around the door leaf edges.

### 11.7.3 **Panic Hardware**

Panic hardware may be fitted, provided that its installation does not require the removal of any timber from the leaf, stop or frame reveal and it in no way interferes with the self-closing action of the door leaf.

### 11.7.4 **Door Security Viewers**

Door security viewers with brass or steel bodies of a diameter less than or equal to 15mm may be used provided that the through-hole is bored tight to the case of the viewer (maximum tolerance +1mm). Lenses must be glass and the item must be bedded in to a tested intumescent mastic.

The following door security viewers have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 design.

Tested Security Viewer Specification			
Product Reference	Manufacturer	Dimensions	
(Test Reference)	/Supplier	(mm)	
STS4008	Sealed Tight	Body: Ø14	
(WF391032A)	Solutions <sup>1</sup>	Footprint: Ø26	

### Note:

1. STS4008 is permitted for use in 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets only

### 11.7.5 **Environmental Seals**

Flame retardant acoustic, weather and dust seals e.g;

- Fire and Acoustic Seals Ltd: FAS35, FAS39, FAS-Trident, FAS-Twin
- Lorient Polyproducts Ltd: IS1212, IS1511, IS7025, IS7060
- Norsound Ltd: NOR710, NOR710FR, NOR710SR, NOR710STOP, NOR720
- Raven Products Pty. Ltd: RP120, RP124, RP134, RP150, RP500, RP520, RP670
- Reddiplex Ltd: 9927, 9945, 9946, 10623, 11300, 11301, 11302
- Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd: ST1009, ST1009K
- Sealmaster: Delta, Double Fin Seal, Duxback

for the proce may be fitted to this doorset design without compromising the performance, providing their for purpose fitting does not interfere with the activation of the intumescent seals or hinder the self-closing that a function of the leaves.

### 11.7.6 Letter Boxes/Plates

Letter boxes/plates may be fitted providing the product can demonstrate contribution to the required performance of this type of 30 or 60 minute doorset design, when tested to BS 476. Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1, when installed within a time of the tested to BS 476. Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1, when installed within a timber based doorset of comparable thickness. Products may be fitted up to 1200mm from floor level and set to any leaf edge. The area occupied by the letter box/plate must be deducted from the area of glazing, if both elements are fitted.

The following letter boxes/plates have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the The response nanufactured Stredor 54 design.



Tested Letter Box/Plate Specification		
Product Reference (Test Reference)	Manufacturer /Supplier	Dimensions (mm)
STS4001 (WF391032A)	Sealed Tight Solutions <sup>1</sup>	Footprint: 310 x 75

### Note:

1. STS4001 is permitted for use in 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets only

### 11.7.7 **Threshold Seals**

The following types of automatic threshold drop seals may be recessed into the bottom edge of leaves to this design without compromising the performance.

Threshold Seal Specification		
Product Reference	Manufacturer /Supplier	
Pemko 411_NBL / PKL / RL / SL	Assa Abloy	
Schall-Ex Duo L-15	Athmer	
FAS45	Fire & Acoustic Seals Ltd.	
LAS8001 si	Lorient Polyproducts Ltd.	
NOR810, NOR810S, NOR810dB+	Norsound Ltd.	
RP8Si	Raven	
HID, HEID	Reddiplex Ltd.	
STS 422, STS 422GT	Sealed Tight Solutions Ltd.	
DRP2712	Sealmaster (Dixon International Group Ltd)	

### **Air Transfer Grilles** 11.7.8

Air transfer grilles may be fitted providing the product has suitable test evidence to BS 476: performance when installed within a timber based doorset of comparable thickness. Margins to the leaf edges will remain as detailed for closing and the Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1, that demonstrates a minimum 60 minutes integrity to the leaf edges will remain as detailed for glazing and the position of the unit will be dictated by the pressure regime tested in the proving evidence (normally below mid-height). The area occupied by the air transfer grille must not exceed 0.2m<sup>2</sup> and must be deducted from the area of glazing, if both elements are fitted.

### **Cable Loop & Cableway** 11.7.9

11.7.9 Cable Loop & Cableway The following cable loops have been successfully incorporated in the tests on the Stredor 54 Falcon Panel Produce, porated a Instructure of the second the te lest unanutactured using t unent details a sube regime coverin design.

The following limitations apply:



- 1. Cable loop is permitted for use in 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets only
- 2. The cableway must be located no higher than 1290mm from bottom of the leaf.
- 3. Cable loop and cableway not permitted with grooves in the door leaf.

Tested Cable Loop Specification		
Product Reference	Manufacturer	Dimensions
(Test Reference)	/Supplier	(mm)
Ref. 633311		Footprint: 290mm x 25mm
Steel cable loop	Sealed Tight Solutions	(including a Ø12mm spring
(WF391032A)		assembly)

Faton Pare Produces in callation and maintenance of the door as an interaction for the produces in the proposed in the produces in the produce of the produces in the produces

This document renains the property of Falcon Parel Products Ind.

This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

current details a subset of evidence from an extensive current details a subset of evide range on our website at current details a subset on can be found under our website at the regime contained and the found under our website at the regime contained and the found under our website at the regime contained and the found under our website at the regime contained and the found under our website at the regime contained and the found under our website at the regime contained and the found under our website at the regime contained and the found out website at the regime contained and the found out website at the regime contained and the found out website at the regime contained and the found out website at the regime contained and the found out website at the regime contained and the found out website at the regime contained and the found out website at the regime contained at the regime of the regime of

### Installation 12

### 12.1 General

This section consider the installation of direct types of frames and doorset. This section considers:

- the door frame and architrave installation position relative to the wall .
- the fire stopping between the frame and the wall .
- the fixing requirement including packers
- the requirements for door edge gaps •
- the trimming of door edges .

### 12.2 **Door Frame Installation: Frame 1**

The following diagrams indicate acceptable door frame/wall installation arrangements and are used with leaf 1 and 2:

The drawings below show the relationship of frame to wall and location of firestopping between wall and frame.

See section 12.5 for preparation requirement for the aperture.

The frame is required to finish flush with the face of the wall, architraves are optional except where gaps are in excess of 20mm (see section 12.3 below).

### **Timber Stud Supporting Construction: Installation Detail** 12.2.1

Supports third party certification for the processing (A): without frame extension: 100 and maintening fraction and that the property of the fraction of the products the property of the fraction of the products the property of t Falcon Panel Products manufacture install



B): with frame extension

12.2.2 **Blockwork Supporting Construction: Installation Detail** 



roud to be part

(B): with frame extension

# 12.3 Firestopping

The firestopping requirements between back of frame and wall are dependent on the gap size.

ine meetepping	
Gaps (mm)	Requirement
0 – 5	this should not occur as it is practically not possible to apply a firestopping material into a gap of this size.
	If unavoidable the following must be applied:
	A 30x2mm strip of graphite fixed to back of the frame located central to the frame rebate and capped with intumescent mastic.
5 – 10	must be sealed on both sides with a 10mm depth of acrylic intumescent mastic, fire tested for this application to BS 476: Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1. Based on the test evidence the use of architraves is optional.
10 – 20	must be tightly packed with mineral fibre capped on both sides with a 10mm depth of acrylic intumescent mastic, fire tested for this application to BS 476: Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1 or full depth expanding PU foam, fire tested for this application to BS 476: Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1. Architraves are optional.
Over 20	<ul> <li>this would be considered a poor preparation of the structural opening. A timber based or non-combustible subframe up to 50mm thick can be inserted and fixed to the wall and the gap between subframe and wall filled as follows:</li> <li>Gaps 5 to 10mm filled on both sides with 10mm depth of acrylic intumescent mastic or full depth expanding PU foam, fire tested for this application to BS 476: Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1. Joint must be fitted with 15mm thick architraves overlapping at least 15mm each side.</li> </ul>
	• The subframe to door frame gap filled as above.

# 12.4 Packers

Packers can be timber of equal density to the frame or plywood or plastic packers if fire tested for this application to BS 476: Part 22: 1987 or BS EN 1634-1.

# 12.5 Wall Types

The frame needs to be fixed back to a supporting construction which will remain in place for the duration of the fire resistance period. The following aspect of the different supporting constructions need to be considered.

# 12.5.1 Masonry, Concrete & Solid Blockwork

These are considered as rigid constructions and are solid throughout the depth of the wall and have inherent fire resistance. These walls are denoted as rigid constructions in BSEN 1364 Part 1 as they deflect very little during a fire test. Due to the solid nature of the wall firestoppinig as detailed above will be adequate. Highly perforated blockwork is not covered by this category and specific test evidence must be referenced to ensure adequate support during the fire exposure period.

# **12.5.2 Steel Stud Partitions**

These are considered as flexible constructions and incorporate large voids in their construction. These walls deflect during a fire test. Specific evidence is require to ensure the stud supporting the door frame is stabilised to reduce deflection during the fire test and the aperture is adequately lined to prevent gases getting into the void.

# **12.5.3 Timber Stud Partitions**

These are not catagorised but tend not to distort significantly during a fire test. A timber stud does not need to be stabilised during the fire test.

# 12.5.4 Bespoke Walls & Partitions

These will require specific test evidence.

# 12.6 Onsite Leaf Size Adjustment

	Leaf Size Adjustment Specification	for lies.
Element	Reduction	mer
Lipping	The dimensions stated in section 5.3 may be reduced by 1m for fitting purposes but cannot go below the minimum.	IN NC

The door leaves should not be modified on site so only limited actions can be taken, see table below.

# 12.7 Door Gaps

For fire resistance performance, door edge gaps and alignment tolerances must fall within the range shown in the following table.

Door Edge Gaps & Alignment Tolerance Specification	
Location	Dimensions strete evide to nide to no
Door edge gaps	A minimum of 2mm and a maximum of 4mm
	n Panentacturen sporstured & details contaction and
	Falco me this are anna cument restiment whe
	* Warringtonfire

Alignment tolerances	Leaves must not be proud of each other or from the door frame by more than 1mm
Threshold	10mm between bottom of leaf and top of floor covering. (See section 14 for gap details with reference to smoke control)

# 12.8 Fixings

The frame jambs are to be fixed to the supporting construction using steel fixings at 600mm maximum centres. The fixings must be of the appropriate type for the supporting construction and must penetrate to a minimum depth of 40mm. It is not necessary to fix the frame head, although packers must be inserted.



### 13 Insulation

Insulation performance may be claimed for a doorset to this design meeting the following.

Insulation Performance Specification	
Туре	Details
Partially insulating	Doorsets incorporating up to 20% of non-insulating glazing
Fully insulating	Unglazed doorsets and glazed doorsets with fully insulated glass. <i>For 30 minutes:</i> glass type 8 – 10 <i>For 60 minutes:</i> glass type 10 (See section 6.2)

### **Smoke Control** 14

#### 14.1 General

If the doorset design is required to provide a smoke control function to comply with Building Regulations, in the absence of a suitable pressurisation system, the doorset must meet one of the following criteria:

- have a leakage rate not exceeding 3m<sup>3</sup>/m/hour (head and jambs only) when tested (a) at 25Pa under BS 476 Fire tests on building materials and structures, Section 31.1 Methods for measuring smoke penetration through doorsets and shutter assemblies. Method of measurement under ambient temperature conditions; or
- (b) meet the additional classification requirement of Sa when tested to BS EN 1634-3: 2004 – Fire resistance tests for door and shutter assemblies, Part 3 – Smoke control doors.

Smoke seals or combined intumescent/smoke seals that are fitted to the door to achieve the performance requirements specified above, must have been tested in accordance with the associated test method. Providing the smoke seals, any interruptions, door gaps, and the type/configuration of the doorset are consistent with the detail tested, the doorset will comply with current smoke control legislation under Approved Document B; and a suffix 'S' or 'Sa', as appropriate, may be added to the designation. Any other components installed where smoke leakage may occur must also be taken into account. atany

### 14.2 **Further Considerations**

fire safety in the design, management and use of buildings, which may impose different or additional requirements, such as consideration of the gap between design.

Responsibility for the appropriate smoke sealing specification and performance of the doors should be agreed between the relevant parties (i.e. specifier, manufacturer, contractor) prior to commencing manufacture and/or installation. tion a, ecifier, ma ecifier, ma products tratalation restriction of the second and the restriction of the second and the secon he responsibilitied using the evil En resine covering and e Insdocument enduration of the state



Faton Pand Produces installation and maintenance of fine door assemblies.

handlacure installation and maintenance of the door assertiones. This document renains the property of ratio ensure that that any produces that the the reader to ensure that that any produces that the the reader to ensure that the the test of the the reader to ensure that the the test of the the test of test of the test of test This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products Indian products in the property of Falcon Panel Products Indian products in the product of the traction of the product of the

This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

current details a subset of evidence from an extensive current details a subset of evide range on our website at current details a subset on can be found under our website at the real the covering can be found under our website at the real the covering can be found under our website at the real the covering can be found under our website at the real the covering can be found under our website at the real the covering can be found under our website at the real the covering can be found under our website at the real the covering covering covering our website at the real the

### 15 Conclusion

If the Falcon Panel Products Ltd. Stredor 54 doorset designs, constructed in accordance with the specifications documented in this Field of Application, were to be tested in the appropriate configuration in accordance with BS 476: Part 22: 1987, it is our opinion that it would provide a minimum of 30 and 60 minutes integrity and insulation (subject to section 13).
#### **16 Declaration by the Applicant**

- 1) We the undersigned confirm that we have read and comply with obligations placed on us by FTSG Resolution No. 82: 2001.
- 2) We confirm that the component or element of structure, which is the subject of this field of application report, has not to our knowledge been subjected to a fire test to the Standard against which this field of application is being made.
- 3) We agree to withdraw this field of application report from circulation should the component or element of structure be the subject of a fire test to the Standard against which this field of application is being made.
- 4) We are not aware of any information that could adversely affect the conclusions of this field of application report.
- 5) If we subsequently become aware of any such information we agree to ask the assessing authority to withdraw the field of application.

Signed:

Name:

# Neil Harrison

For and on behalf of: Falcon Panel Products Ltd.



This document remains the property of Falcon Panel Products It do purpose.

Individual of the regime coverine a wide range of products.

cument details a subset of evidence from an extensive cument details a subset of evidence formation of the f

#### Limitations 17

The following limitations apply to this field of application report:

- 1) This field of application addresses itself solely to the elements and subjects discussed and do not cover any other criteria. All other details not specifically referred to should remain as tested or assessed.
- 2) This field of application report is issued on the basis of test data and information to hand at the time of issue. If contradictory evidence becomes available, Warringtonfire reserves the right to withdraw the report unconditionally but not retrospectively.
- This field of application has been carried out in accordance with Fire Test Study Group 3) Resolution No. 82: 2001.
- Opinions and interpretation expressed herein are outside the scope of UKAS 4) accreditation.
- This field of application relates only to those aspects of design, materials and 5) construction that influence the performance of the element(s) under fire resistance test conditions. It does not purport to be a complete specification ensuring fitness for purpose and long-term serviceability. It is the responsibility of the client to ensure that the element conforms to recognised good practice in all other respects and that, with the incorporation of the guidance given in this field of application, the element is suitable for its intended purpose.
- This field of application report represents our opinion as to the performance likely to be 6) demonstrated on a test in accordance with BS 476: Part 22: 1987, on the basis of the test evidence referred to in this report. We express no opinion as to whether that evidence, and/or this field of application would be regarded by any Building Control authority as sufficient for that or any other purpose. This field of application report is provided to the client for its own purposes and we cannot opine on whether it will be accepted by Building Control authorities or any other third parties for any purpose.
- This report may only be reproduced in full. Extracts or abridgements of reports shall not 7) be published without permission of Warringtonfire. All work and services carried out by Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Limited are subject to, and conducted in racon para produces the supports third partice the office to face produces the supports third partice of the conpare produces the supports the produces the supports the produce of the conpare produces the supports the produce of the conpare produces the supports the produces th accordance with, the Standard Terms and Conditions of Warringtonfire Testing and Certification Limited, which are available at https://www.element.com/terms/terms-andconditions or upon request.

#### 18 Validity

- 1) The assessment is valid 5 years from the date of issue, after which time it must be submitted to Warringtonfire for technical review and revalidation.
- 2) This assessment report is not valid unless it incorporates the declaration given in section 16 duly signed by the applicant.

Signature:	KDS Javler	Alla
Name:	Dr K.D.S Towler	A.M. Winning
Title:	Senior Product Assessor	Senior Product Assessor

Faton Pare Produces in callation and maintenance of the door as an interaction for the produces in the proposed in the produces in the produce of the produces in the produces in the produces in the produce of the produces in the produces

Antifecture, installation ainst the reader to ensure that that any produces the reader to ensure that that the reader to ensure the reader to ensure that that the reader to ensure the reader This document renains the property of Falcon Parel Products Indian purpose.

This document details a subset of a wide range of products.

current details a subset of evidence from an extensive entret details a subset of evide range on our website at current details a subset on carbon conversion of the found of

#### **19** Appendix A: Revisions

Rev.	WF Ref.	Date	Description
A	428330	26.Jun.20	Technical review and revalidation of the stredor 54 FoA report.



### 20 Appendix B: Performance Data

PRIMARY DATA

Test Reference	Specific Tested Feature	Configuration	Leaf Size (h x w x t)(mm)	Test Standard	Performance (minutes)
CFR1812191_1	STS seals, ERA multipoint lock, Pyrobelite 12 EI30/EW60 glazing, STS glazing seals,	LSASD	2192 1046 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 71 Insulation: 34
WF369636	Pyroplex seals, Pyrobelite 12 60/0 glazing, ISL glazing seals,	ULSADD	2145 923/923 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 65 Insulation: 35
WF412601 A	Type 617 seals, Rutland pivot/strap, Rutland floor spring,	DASD	2040 926 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 71 Insulation: 71
BMT/FEP/F16174	Pyroplex seals, Pyrodur 10 EW60-10 glazing, ISL glazing seals,	ULSADD	2140 923/923 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity <sup>1</sup> : 68 Insulation: 0
WF374929 B	STS seals, Pyrobelite 12 glazing, STS glazing seals,	ULSADD	2400 927/582 54	BS 476 Part 22:	Integrity: 67 Insulation: 67
WF392155	STS seals, Feature grooves,	ULSADD	2400 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	BS 476: Part 22: 1987, 60 00 000	Integrity: 57 Insulation: 57



WF391032	STS seals, ERA multipoint lock with ERA electric locking mechanism, Cableway, STS eye viewer, STS letterplate,	LSASD	2395 1180 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 43 Insulation: 19
WF412601 B	Type 617 seals, Rutland pivot/strap, Rutland floor spring,	DASD	2040 926 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 71 Insulation: 71
WF407334	Pyroplex seals, Pyrobelite 12 glazing, ISL glazing seals,	ULSADD	2146 923/923 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 65 Insulation: not evaluated

### SUPPORTING DATA

CFR1404291 B	Pyrodur 10 EW60-10 glazing, ISL60 Plus glazing system,	Fixed Door Leaf	2135 665 64	Principles of BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 104
CFR1405131 B	11mm Contraflam Door Lite glazing, ISL60 Plus glazing system,	Fixed Door Leaf	2135 665 64	Principles of BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 105
CFR1405201 A	6mm Schott Pyran S glazing, Sealmaster Fireglaze glazing system,	Fixed Door Leaf	2135 665 64 0 <sup>15</sup> d <sup>10</sup>	Principles of BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 76
CFR1405201 B	6mm Schott Pyran S glazing,	Fixed Door Leaf	2135 <sup>5</sup> <sup>10</sup> 10 <sup>10</sup> <sup>10</sup> 10 <sup>10</sup> <sup>10</sup> <sup>10</sup> <sup>10</sup> <sup>10</sup> <sup>10</sup>	Principles of BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 93



NW.Falc

	ISL60 Plus glazing system,		64		
WF413865	Strelip 60 8mm thick engineered timber	ULSADD	2135 935/935 54	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 70 Insulation: 70
WF414781 <sup>2</sup>	Rutland Door Controls ITS11204 concealed overhead	ULSADD	2040 935/935 44	BS 476: Part 22: 1987	Integrity: 33 Insulation: 10

#### Note:

- In accordance with section 8.6.1 of BS476: Part22: 1987, the specimen has not been evaluated for insulation. Glass tested was Pilkington Group Ltd, Pyrodur EW60-10. Based on the performance recorded in the test it is our opinion that glass types known to have better or similar insulation performance may be utilised, up to maximum of 16mm thick as assessed in section 6. Glazed area was 0.616m<sup>2</sup>. Based on internal assessment rules, a maximum glazed area of 1.1m<sup>2</sup> is permitted, subject to the requirements of section 6.
- 2. 30 minutes fire resisting doorsets only.



## END OF REPORT

